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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year of 2018, National United Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) has engaged in
business and reportable segment as follows:

(i) Car rental

The Group engages in (i) shuttle bus services for employees/students of
institutional customers between the working places/schools to different
residential communities by conventional energy vehicles and/or electric
buses; (ii) car rental services without chauffeured service; and (iii) car
rental services for different business and leisure purpose such as pick-
up services requested by the institutional or individual customers. The
revenue from this business has been recorded since September 2016. The
total revenue was increased for the year ended 31 December 2018 due
to the increment in the number of buses leased.

(ii) Online platform
The Group engages in the provision of online platform for trading and
deferred spot delivery services of precious metals mainly being silver and
copper, and other associated services including transaction settlement
management, commodity delivery management and related consulting
services to customers nationwide in the People’s Republic of China
("PRC").

The revenue of this segment represented the handling fees charged to
end customers who utilized the online trading platform.

(iii) Resources trading
The Group had diversified its resources and business to trading of coking
coal. The Group encountered downward trend for the past few years in
this business segment. The coal market continued to diminish and coal
price remained at a low level due to ongoing sluggish demand and the
stricter environmental protection governance.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

MATERIAL ACQUISITION, DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD

The Group did not have any material acquisition and disposal of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
did not have any significant investments held as at 31 December 2018.

Acquisition of Gear World

Nation Spirit Limited and Blissful Elite Limited, as vendors, their respective
beneficial owners, as guarantors, and NUR New Energy Management
Company Limited, wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser
(“NUR New Energy”) entered into the sale and purchase agreement dated
15 January 2016 (as amended by a supplemental agreement dated 24 June
2016) (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) to acquire all equity interest of
Gear World Development Limited (“Gear World"”) (the “Acquisition of Gear
World”). On 31 August 2016, the Company announced that the completion
of the Acquisition of Gear World took place. Upon completion of the
Acquisition of Gear World, Gear World became a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, and the subsidiaries of Gear World, being 1t 5 X 5 @5t /5
BEHEHFR QA (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Car Rental Co., Ltd*) (“TMTC")
and tZR X E @ REFEER QA (Beijing Tian Ma Tong Chi Travel
Transportation Co., Ltd*) (“TMTC Travel”, together with “Gear World” and
"TMTC", the "TMTC Group”) became an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
and a 49%-owned associate of the Company respectively.

In relation to the acquisition by NUR New Energy of entire issued share capital
of Gear World at a consideration of HK$800,000,000, subject to downward
adjustments as set out in the Sale and Purchase Agreement, ultimately, the
consideration of the Acquisition of Gear World of HK$200,000,000 was
settled by cash of HK$60,000,000 (in which HK$30,000,000 was yet to be
paid as at 31 December 2018) and issued convertible bonds on 6 September
2016 in the principal amount of HK$140,000,000 which bear interest at the
rate of 3% per annum.

NUR New Energy confirmed with the vendors that NUR New Energy was not
obligated to pay any further consideration since the TMTC Group achieved no
profit in guarantee periods.

Relevant disclosure was made in the Company’s announcements dated 15
January 2016, 30 March 2016, 31 May 2016, 24 June 2016, 18 July 2016,
31 August 2016, 14 February 2017 and 22 February 2017, and the circular of
the Company dated 30 June 2016.

*  For identification purposes only
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The business of the Group has remained unchanged for the year 2018,
consecutively operating the provision of car rental services and tour bus
services including shuttle bus services for business and leisure purposes as
well as related value-added services in the PRC by TMTC, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, and TMTC Travel, a 49%-owned associate of
TMTC.

The revenue of the Group decreased from approximately HK$58.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$54.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of approximately
6.6%. Such decrease was mainly due to the effect on decrease in revenue
from online platform by HK$22.8 million, caused of termination of operation
in 2017, greater than the effect from car rental income increased by HK$18.9
million for the year 2018 caused by the increment in the number of buses
leased by the Group to TMTC Travel, as compared to the year 2017. The
gross profit increased from approximately HK$32.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2017 to approximately HK$42.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, representing an increase of approximately 28.5% and the
gross profit margin increased from approximately 56.2% to approximately
77.4%.

Moreover, the Group recorded a substantial decrease in loss for the year from
approximately HK$137.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2017 to
approximately HK$15.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018, which
was mainly attributed to a more effective cost control on administrative and
other operating expenses and finance cost for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCIAL REVIEW (cont'd)

The non-current assets were decreased by HK$20.8 million from HK$189.3
million as at 31 December of 2017 to HK$168.5 million as at 31 December
2018. The whole effect of the non-current assets were attributable to
property, plant and equipment, which 100% of non-current assets has
been denominated in Renminbi ("RMB"). The net exchange differences of
HK$9.4 million, deprecation charged of HK$13.1 for the year 2018, reversal
of impairment loss of approximately HK$1.3 million and addition of cost of
motor vehicle and trucks of approximately HK$248,000 were attributable to
the decrease in non-current assets.

The current assets of the Group increased from approximately HK$172.5
million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$196.8 million as at 31
December 2018 which was mainly due to the increase in amount due from
an associate while the TMTC Group operating its business. The amount due is
expected to be settled within 12 months.

The current liabilities of the Group increased from approximately HK$819.9
million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately HK$879.1 million as at 31
December 2018 which was mainly due to the imputed interest charged in
convertible bonds during the year of 2018, which resulted in the increase
in carrying amount of convertible bonds and the reclassification from non-
current liabilities to current liabilities in view of the maturity date of the
relevant convertible bonds.

As a result, the Group recorded an increase of net current liabilities from
approximately HK$647.4 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$682.3 million as at 31 December 2018, and net liabilities from
approximately HK$595.4 million as at 31 December 2017 to approximately
HK$599.4 million as at 31 December 2018.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at 31 December 2018, the issued share capital of the Company was
HK$3,178,754,000 divided into 6,411,770,500 shares (the “Shares”).

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group financed its operations
by cash flow from operating activities. As at 31 December 2018, the cash and
bank balances of the Group amounted to approximately HK$1.1 million (31
December 2017: HK$6.6 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

R R e

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, The Group had current assets of approximately
HK$196.8 million (2017: HK$172.5 million), while its current liabilities were
approximately HK$879.1 million (2017: HK$819.9 million). The current ratio
of the Group was approximately 0.2 times (2017: 0.2 times) and gearing ratio
(total debt/total equity) was nil (2017: nil).

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$1.1 million (2017: HK$6.6 million).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the majority of the Group's
income and expenses were denominated in RMB and Hong Kong dollars. Up
to 31 December 2018, the management of the Company was of the opinion
that the Group has insignificant exposure to foreign exchange risk. As a
result, the Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging against
fluctuation in foreign exchange for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Nevertheless, the management of the Company will closely monitor and from
time to time reassess the exchange risk exposures of the Group and enter into
non-speculative hedging arrangements if considered necessary.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 779 employees (including the
directors of the Company (the “Directors”)) in Hong Kong and the PRC
(31 December 2017: 692 employees). The Group continues to provide
remuneration packages to employees according to market practices, their
experience and performance. Remuneration policy is basically determined
with reference to individual performance as well as the financial results of
the Group. Remuneration to staff will be revised from time to time when
warranted considering the performances of staff. Other benefits include
medical insurance scheme and contribution of statutory mandatory provident
fund for the employees. The Group also adopted a share option scheme
whereby qualified participants may be granted options to acquire Shares.
There has been no major change in staff utilized policies during the year
ended 31 December 2018.

8 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group recorded borrowings of approximately
HK$159.0 million (31 December 2017: HK$167.2 million) and no bank loans
(31 December 2017: nil). All borrowings are repayable on demand or within
the year.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had no significant capital commitments outstanding as at 31
December 2018.

CHARGE ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group pledged property, plant and equipment
with the net carrying account of approximately HK$109.1 million to secure
the finance lease payables of approximately HK$183.6 million. As at 31
December 2017, the Group pledged property, plant and equipment with the
net carrying account of approximately HK$122.8 million to secure the finance
lease payables of approximately HK$190.6 million.

LITIGATIONS
Details of the litigations of the Group are set out in note 31 to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had contingent liabilities as possible
claims arising from indemnity related to a former subsidiary of approximately
HK$6,920,000 being equivalent to RMB6,100,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$7,313,000 being equivalent to RMB6,100,000). In the opinion of
management of the Company, it is not necessary for recording any provisions
for the above contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWED

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD - SUSPENSION
OF TRADING OF SHARES

Reference is made to the Company’s announcements dated 1 August 2016,
19 August 2016, 10 October 2017, 24 April 2018, 31 May 2018, 29 June
2018, 31 July 2018, 14 August 2018, 12 October 2018, 30 October 2018,
3 December 2018, 25 January 2019, 31 January 2019, 29 March 2019,
30 April 2019 and 19 June 2019 relating to, among others, the update of
suspension of trading in the Shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is still actively carrying out all necessary action to fulfil all
the resumption conditions before 31 July 2019, being the expiry of the
12-months period starting from the effective date of the amendments to the
delisting framework under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

On 19 June 2019, the Company submitted a resumption proposal to the
Stock Exchange. The Company will use its best endeavour to fulfil all
resumption conditions and resume trading of the Shares on the Stock
Exchange.

OUTLOOK

As commuter bus leasing market (the “Market”) in the PRC with a steady
growth in recent years, the board of Directors (the "Board”) expects the
Market would be stable in the foreseeable future, specially the Market located
in Beijing and regions without mass transit alternatives.

The Group not only concerns environmental issue and industrial compliance
but also being active in bringing in an eco-friendly operation. In this
regards, new model development of new energy buses — electric vehicle
is experiencing rapid growth in replacing the existing traditional vehicles.
The Group is looking forward to invest a significant amount in such
environmental-friendly assets.

Under the challenging economic situation in the PRC, the Group currently
has committed simplifying group structures not only to enhance efficiency
on executive and administrative hierarchy but also to put existing resources
in generate profit in priority. The Group’s suppliers, customers and operating
activities mainly situated in the PRC. The domestic economic changes would
affect the business of the Group. The current situation of global trading issue
may not directly affect the Group’s business. However, any adverse changes
of economic in the PRC in any financially significant export/import industry,
the domino effect would finally bring the negative result to the Group in
long run, since the income from TMTC Group is sourced from various types
of institutional customers, most of them are multinational corporations or
international schools with branches or offices in Beijing.

With threshold resources to maintain operations and development, the Group
will continue to utilise all internal recourses to serve operating activities and
preserve identified stakeholder’s interests.

1 O National United Resources Holdings Limited
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ji Kaiping ("Mr. Ji"), aged 56, has been appointed as an executive
Director with effect from 29 August 2017 and appointed as the Chairman
of the Board (the “Chairman”) with effect from 29 November 2018. He
is also an authorised representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules, the chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”) and director of various
subsidiaries of the Group. He completed the course of master's degree in
business administration at International Business Administration School
of the University of International Business and Economics in China from
October 2003 to November 2005. He founded TMTC in 2006 and serves
as its chairman. TMTC has become an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company since August 2016 and Mr. Ji is responsible for the overall
management of the actual operation of TMTC. Mr. Ji has extensive experience
in management.

Mr. Guo Peiyuan ("Mr. Guo"), aged 48, has been appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 4 April 2018. He has almost 20 years’
experience in passenger transport management. From 1999 to 2004,
he worked in dt R EFIK{TAH B MR A A as department manager, mainly
responsible for scheduling of sightseeing buses, business development
and customer relationship etc. From 2004 to 2006, Mr. Guo worked in it
RABIREETE AR as deputy team leader, mainly responsible for fleet
management, business development and customer relationship etc. In 2006,
he founded TMTC and currently serves as its general manager. In 2008, he
acquired dt =T RE K774 and changed its name to TMTC Travel. Currently,
Mr. Guo participants in management of TMTC Travel but does not hold any
interest in such company. TMTC and TMTC Travel has become an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and a 49%-owned associate of the
Company respectively since August 2016.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. An Jingwen ("Mr. An"), aged 63, has been appointed as a non-
executive Director with effect from 3 December 2018. He is also a member of
each of the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) and the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) of the Company. He obtained
a Doctor's degree in Management Science and Engineering from China
University of Mining and Technology (Beijing) in 2010 and the qualification
certificate of independent director issued by the Shanghai Stock Exchange in
May 2012.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR (cont'd)

Mr. An is professor of school of management of China University of Mining
& Technology (Beijing) and tutor of postgraduate candidates. Mr. An has
over 30 years’ experience in teaching and research work and has extensive
experience in the coal industry and corporate training, as well as in the areas
of standardization and quality management. Mr. An is currently a member of
each of MEIER T XHEERTHEFMZEE (Coal Industry Technology
Committee of China National Coal Association) and FEI{Z &L HERFE R
JERIERITZ B (the Fifth Science and Technology Committee of China
National Institute of Standardization).

Mr. An has been an independent director of Pingdingshan Tianan Coal Mining
Co., Ltd. (stock code: 601666) since May 2013 and served as an independent
director of Liaoning Hongyang Energy Investment Co., Ltd. from April 2014 to
January 2016 (stock code: 600758) whose shares are listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wen (“Mr. Li"), aged 63, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 4 April 2018, He is also the chairman
of the Audit Committee, and a member of each of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He obtained bachelor of laws
from China University of Political Science and Law in 1983 and master of
laws from Graduate School of Chinese Academy of Social Sciences in 1986.
In 1986, he passed the Chinese National Lawyer’s Qualification examination
in Beijing and obtained legal professional qualification. From August 1986 to
December 1992, Mr. Li served as lawyer in 1 BUEREE A 4 and practised
in law firms in Hong Kong, London and Los Angeles during the period from
June 1988 to January 1991. From December 1992 to June 1994, he founded
Beijing Zhong Lun Law Firm and served as principal. From June 1994 to
July 2007, Mr. Li founded Beijing Li Wen & Partners and served as principal.
Beijing Li Wen & Partners principally engaged in corporate, international
trading, real estate and finance. From July 2007 to January 2018, subsequent
to the change of name from Beijing Li Wen & Partners to it 5 {Z M2 A1 =
5 Ffr, through merger with Beijing Hao Tian Law Office, Beijing Hylands Law
Firm had been established, and Mr. Li served as partner. From January 2018,
Beijing Hylands Law Firm, Beijing Anli Partners and Guangzhou Kunlun Law
Firm merged into b G XL EAZMEH AT and Mr. Li became partner of 1t
TOERZIBERM SR

1 2 National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (cont’d)
Mr. Qiu Ke ("Mr. Qiu”), aged 48, has been appointed as an independent
non-executive Director with effect from 1 June 2018 He is also the chairman
of the Remuneration Committee and a member of each of the Audit
Committee and the Nomination Committee. He obtained a Bachelor’s degree
in economics from Capital University of Economics and Business (formerly
known as Beijing College of Economics) in 1994, and obtained a Master's
degree in business administration from Renmin University of China in 2003.
He also obtained a vocational education diploma in accounting studies in
Canada in 2004.

From 1995 to 2005, Mr. Qiu served as assistant analyst in credit card
department of Beijing Branch of China Construction Bank and has in-depth
knowledge and extensive experience in financial industry and products.
Thereafter, he has involved in works of accounting in Canada and has a
profound theoretical knowledge and extensive practical experience in all
aspects of international trading, management in accounting industry, various
types of financial statements, letter of credit and telegraphic transfer.

Ms. Chen Yen Yung (“Ms. Chen"), aged 47, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 17 April 2019. She is
also a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee. She has over 20 years’ experience in the
accounting and finance field. She is a member of the CPA Australia and an
associate member of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants (currently known
as the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants). Ms. Chen studied
in The Hong Kong Polytechnic University for higher certificate in accountancy
and holds a bachelor's degree in commerce (accounting) from the Curtin
University of Technology, Western Australia. From February 1995 to February
2001, she was employed by K.L. Lee & Partners CPA Limited (subsequently
known as KLL Associates CPA Ltd. and merged with BDO Limited in 2005), a
certified practicing accountancy firm in Hong Kong, with her last position as
an assistant manager. From February 2001 to June 2002, she was employed
by B&M Consultants Limited (currently known as BMI Consultants Limited),
a business consultancy company in Hong Kong, with her last position as
director. Ms. Chen is currently the company secretary of 3T 7k %2 @ i 4% A%
&7 BBR A A (Zhejiang Yongan Rongtong Holdings Co., Ltd*) (stock code:
8211), a joint stock limited company incorporated in the PRC, whose H shares
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange. During the period from September
2018 to June 2019, she served as the independent non-executive director of
Mayer Holdings Limited (stock code: 1116), whose shares are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

*  For identification purposes only
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2018:

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities of its
principal subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

A detailed review on the Group's business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and likely
future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout this annual
report and in particular under the following separate sections:

(@) review of the Company's business and financial position, a discussion of
the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and an indication
of likely future developments in the Group’s business are shown in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual
report and note 35 to the financial statements;

(b) details of key performance indicators are shown in the sub-section
headed “Liquidity and Financial Resources” under the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report;

(c) the Group's environmental policies and performance are shown in the
sub-section headed “Environmental Policies” below;

(d) the Group’s key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
are shown in the sub-section headed "“Key Relationships” below; and

(e) the Group's compliance with the relevant laws and regulations are shown
in the sub-section headed "“Compliance with Laws and Regulations”
below.

The discussions referred to in the above form part of this Directors’ Report.

Subsequent to the year ended 31 December 2018, there are certain updates
in respect of the status of suspension of trading in Shares, further details of
which are shown in the sub-section headed “Event after the Reporting Period
- Suspension of Trading of Shares” under the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

1 4 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW (cont'd)

Key Relationships

a) Employees
Human resources are one of the greatest assets of the Group and the
Group ensures all staff are reasonable remunerated and also continues
to improve and regularly review and update its policies on remuneration
and benefits, training, occupational health and safety.

b) Customers
The Group cherishes the mutually beneficial relationships with its
customers. The Group will provide the best services to its clients to
establish and consolidate the Group’s reputation in the industry.

¢) Suppliers
The Group is also dedicated to develop good relationship with its
suppliers as long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group's
business. The Group reinforces business partnerships with its suppliers
by ongoing communication in a proactive and effective manner so as to
ensure quality and timely delivery.

Environmental Policies

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
that pays close attention to conserving natural resources. By speeding up the
transformation of development mode, adhering to safe, green and efficient
resources for greater quality, the Group aims to achieve green, circular and
low-carbon development.

The Group strives to minimize the environmental impact by saving electricity
and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other materials. In addition,
the Group actively advocated a paperless office and encouraged the
employees to develop good habits, conserve resources and energy to build a
green and comfortable office environment.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW (cont’d)
Compliance with laws and regulations

The Company has been listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
therefore the Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules
including the disclosure requirements, the corporate governance provisions
set out in Appendix 14 and the “comply and explain” provisions set out in
Appendix 27 therein. Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO"), the
Company is required to maintain a register of substantial shareholders’ and
other persons’ interests in Shares and underlying shares of the Company and
a register of Directors’ and chief executives’ interests and short positions in
Shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations and is obliged to disclose price sensitive or inside information as
soon as reasonably practicable.

As the Company is incorporated in Hong Kong, it is subject to various laws
and regulations including Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the laws of
Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), Business Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 310 of the laws of Hong Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Cap. 112 of
the laws of Hong Kong) and Employment Ordinance (Cap. 57 of the laws of
Hong Kong).

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s subsidiaries
in the PRC. Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with all PRC laws and applicable laws in the jurisdictions where we have
operations. To the best of Directors’ knowledge, information and belief,
during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Group complied with all the relevant laws and regulations in the
mainland China and Hong Kong.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company did not arrange appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities. No permitted indemnity
provision was in force for the benefit of the Directors as required by section
470 of the Companies Ordinance at any time during the year ended 31
December 2018 and when the Directors’ Report prepared by the Directors is
approved in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The name of all the then Directors or the Directors who have served on
the subsidiaries of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this annual report are available on the website of the
Company.

1 6 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss on page 51. The Directors do
not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect of the year ended 31
December 2018.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page 112.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 15 to the financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
As at 31 December 2018, the number of issued Shares was 6,411,770,500.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year ended
31 December 2018 are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS AND NON-CONVERTIBLE
BONDS

Details of the convertible bonds and non-convertible bonds issued by
the Company are set out in notes 23 and 24 to the financial statements
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s articles of
association ("Articles”) or the laws of Hong Kong.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company or its
subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities during the ended 31
December 2018.
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 27(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE
As at 31 December 2018, the Company did not have any distributable
reserve.

MAIJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 99.93% of the total sales and sales to
the largest customer included therein accounted for approximately 97.95%.
The cost of online platform was commission occurred. Suppliers of goods
and services of car rental business which are freely available from a range of
suppliers, gasoline stations, at similar prices and which are freely available.
Therefore the disclosure of the top five suppliers are excluded.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any shareholders
of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued Shares) had any beneficial interest in the
Group's five largest customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) (appointed as Chairman on
29 November 2018)

Mr. Guo Peiyuan (appointed on 4 April 2018)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. An Jingwen (appointed with effect from
3 December 2018)

Ms. Mou Ling (resigned on 29 November 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Li Wen (appointed on 4 April 2018)
Mr. Qiu Ke

(appointed on 1 June 2018)

Ms. Chen Yen Yung (appointed on 17 April 2019)

1 8 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS (cont'd)

In accordance with Article 71 of the Articles, the Board may, at any time, and
from time to time, appoint any person to be a Director, either to fill a casual
vacancy or by way of addition to their number. Any Director so appointed
by the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company, and shall then be eligible for re-appointment.

Mr. Ji Kaiping, Mr. Guo Peiyuan, Mr. An Jingwen, Mr. Li Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke
and Ms. Chen Yen Yung will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2019 AGM").

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2019 AGM has
a service contract with the Company which is not determinable within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS
None of the Directors nor their respective associates was interested in any
business which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the businesses of the Group during the year ended 31 December 2018
and up to the date of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 11 to 13 to this
annual report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangements or contract of significance to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and
in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during the year ended 31
December 2018.
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EEEHRE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the Directors or chief executive of the
Company had any interest or short position in the Shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”).

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year ended 31 December 2018 were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or debenture of
the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or children
under 18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

2002 Share Option Scheme

On 25 July 2002, a share option scheme was adopted by the Company
(the "2002 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the Board may grant
options to any employees, directors, shareholders, suppliers, customers of
the Group and any other person or company who has contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty business
days from the offer date. The amount payable by the grantee in respect of the
acceptance of the offer is HK$10.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was expired in July 2012 after the scheme
period of the tenth anniversary of the adoption date and no further share
options can be granted under the 2002 Share Options Scheme.

Details of the 2002 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)
2002 Share Option Scheme (cont’d)
Details of the movement in the share options granted under the 2002 Share

Directors’ Report
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Option Scheme during the year are as follows: EvEEEBOT
Number of share options
BREHA
Outstanding Outstanding Exercise
as at Exercised Cancelled Lapsed as at price
Name of category/ 1 January during during during 31 December per share
participant Date of grant 2018 the year the year the year 2018  Exercise period option
R=B-0\§F RZB-NF
-A-H tZA=t-H
R/ 8048/ 1% RERS HRTE RERTE REREH RERER WATE TR ERTRE
Business associates
EBBEA
In aggregate 27 June 2008 7,761,905 - - (7,761,905) - - -
adt SEENFAACTER
Total 7,761,905 - - (7,761,905) -

@it

2012 Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general meeting
of the Company held on 14 December 2012, a new share option scheme
of the Company (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company. The 2012 Share Option Scheme, subject to earlier termination by
the Company in general meeting, will remain in force for a period of ten years
from its effective date and will expire on 13 December 2022.

The purpose of the 2012 Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive or
reward to eligible participants for their contribution, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of the Company. The Board considers that the 2012
Share Option Scheme is in the interests of the Company and the shareholders
of the Company as a whole as it provides the Company with more flexibility
in providing incentives to those eligible participants by way of granting of
options. Pursuant to the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Board may grant
options to any eligible participants who has contributed or may contribute to
the development and growth of the Group or any entity in which the Group
holds an equity interest. The options may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the 2012 Share Option Scheme at any time during the period to be
determined by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified by the Board
to each grantee as being the period during which options may be exercised
and in any event, such period shall not be longer than 10 years from the date
upon which any particular option is granted in accordance with the 2012
Share Option Scheme.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within twenty business
days from the offer date. The amount payable by the grantee in respect of the
acceptance of the offer is HK$10.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)

2012 Share Option Scheme (cont’'d)

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the Shares in
issue as at its adoption date or the date of approval by the shareholders in
general meeting where the limit is refreshed. At the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 1 June 2015 (the “2015 AGM"), an ordinary
resolution approving the refreshment of the scheme limit and authorizing the
Directors to grant share options under the 2012 Share Option Scheme up to
the refreshed limit (i.e. 372,096,700 Shares, representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of 2015 AGM) was passed. As such,
the total number of Shares available for issue under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme was 372,096,700 Shares, representing approximately 5.8% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.

Details of the 2012 Share Option Scheme are set out in note 28 to the
financial statements.

There was no outstanding share options granted under 2012 Share Option
Scheme as at 31 December 2017 and 2018. No option was granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

At 31 December 2018, the interests or short positions of every person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in the Shares and
underlying shares as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO, were as follows:

Directors’ Report
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FERRRAEMATRRSG REER

S

R-ZE-N\F+-A=+—H RESHFLEHAEK
BIE336MRAMARRFENTLMALE KA
RAEZEHRBITRAEIN 8 A TR RAE
R P ERIOAR DT

Approximately
Number of percentage of
Capacity and Long position/ Number of underlying  total number of
Name Nature of interest short position Shares held shares held Shares in issue
HE#T
ROAH
“E/E28 HoRERME #R/ %A FERGEE  HERBEROHE BREA L
(Note 1)
(M)
Nation Spirit Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner Long position - 933,333,333 14.56%
Nation Spirit Limited ( ff£2) EEHEBA e
Gu Baorong (Note 2) Interest of a controlled Long position - 933,333,333 14.56%
corporation
BER (H:2) REtEE O ER HE
Blissful Elite Limited (Note 3) Beneficial Owner Long position - 933,333,332 14.56%
Blissful Elite Limited ( ff53) EREEA HE
Ji Sen (Note 3) Interest of a controlled Long position - 933,333,332 14.56%
corporation
A (MF3) REREESER e
Yang Fan Beneficial Owner Long position 810,759,648 - 12.64%
BR EHERAA HE
Upper Target Limited (Note 4) Beneficial Owner Long position 596,900,000 - 9.31%
WEAERDE (F5E4) EREBA e
Liu Zidong (Note 4) Interest of a controlled Long position 596,900,000 - 9.31%
corporation
BIF 1% (BizEa) REHEE 0 ER e
Beneficial Owner Long position 8,150,000 - 0.13%
EREBA e
Elite Fortune Global Limited (Note 5)  Beneficial Owner Long position 585,533,845 - 9.13%
AERRBRAF (M35) EREBA e
Wang Yi (Note 5) Interest of a controlled Long position 585,533,845 - 9.13%
corporation
ER (Kazs) ZEHEE S ER e
BKES ERIZERBR AR 23
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES (cont’d)

Notes:

1. The number of underlying shares of the Company held includes the maximum
number of conversion shares to be issued upon full exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the 3% coupon convertible bonds issued by the Company
to the vendors as partial settlement of the consideration pursuant to the sale
and purchase agreement dated 15 January 2016. Please refer to the Company's
announcements dated 15 January 2016, 30 March 2016, 31 May 2016, 24 June
2016, 18 July 2016, 31 August 2016, 14 February 2017 and 22 February 2017,
and the Company'’s circular dated 30 June 2016 for details of the acquisition.

2. Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Nation Spirit Limited and Gu
Baorong each filed with the Stock Exchange on 13 May 2016, these underlying
shares held by Nation Spirit Limited, which is wholly-owned by Gu Baorong. Under
Part XV of the SFO, Gu Baorong is interested in these 933,333,333 underlying
shares in which Nation Spirit Limited is interested.

3. Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Blissful Elite Limited and Ji Sen each
filed with the Stock Exchange on 13 May 2016, these underlying shares held by
Blissful Elite Limited, which is wholly-owned by Ji Sen. Under Part XV of the SFO,
Ji Sen is interested in these 933,333,332 underlying shares in which Blissful Elite
Limited is interested.

4. Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Upper Target Limited and Liu Zidong
each filed with the Stock Exchange on 12 May 2016, these Shares held by Upper
Target Limited, which is wholly-owned by Liu Zidong. Under Part XV of the SFO, Liu
Zidong is interested in these 596,900,000 Shares in which Upper Target Limited is
interested.

5. Based on the notice of disclosure of interest of Elite Fortune Global Limited and
Wang Yi each filed with the Stock Exchange on 10 March 2016, these Shares held
by Elite Fortune Global Limited, which is wholly-owned by Wang Yi. Under Part
XV of the SFO, Wang Yi is interested in these 585,533,845 Shares in which Elite
Fortune Global Limited is interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, no person had registered
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying shares of the
Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.
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Spirit Limited#5 A #5%55933,333,333x #H # ix (5
HEER-

3. 1R#EBlissful Elite Limited R 8 R EBEAR T —REFEH
A+=ARBXMELNEZBEZBN 25 HER
3 f Blissful Elite Limited (&2 Rx 2 &M H ) 1F 48 - IRIE
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DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ emoluments are set out in note 12 to the financial
statements. The Directors’ remunerations, bonuses and other compensation
are determined or recommended by the Remuneration Committee
with reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities and the Group's
performance and results.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not entered into
any transactions which constituted non-exempt connected transactions or
non-exempt continuing connected transactions under the Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group had entered into
certain transactions with parties regarded as “related parties” under the
applicable accounting standards but these transactions were not regarded
as connected transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules or were exempt from reporting, announcement and
shareholders’ approval requirements under the Listing Rules. Details of these
related party transactions are set out in note 33 to the financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, throughout the year of 2018 and as at the date
of this annual report, there is sufficient public float by not less than 25% of
the Company’s issued Shares as required under the Listing Rule.

Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

EEME
EEMOHBHNUBRRME 2 - HEBS 7
MREMBENHFHEASSEEE 2 BE &
ERAEE L RAREEMR T AR -

REXZREERERS

REBEE_ZT-/\F+A=+—HILFE F£&£H
WHEETHEX LETRR TERRCEEXZ AR
RRBEREIZNEMNRS -

BELIX5
REBE-Z-\F+-A=+—HILFE F&H
AR e ENTHRBER (BB | ;A LTET
TETRS ERBELTRANERS TRRRE
BROEFEMERS MK AIHRRET TR
THRH AERRRILERTE HERB TS
EVRE BB B TS R M RE33 -

o

RADNBERE
BREARATDFAENAMAHLBESHAD R -F
—NE2FERBERFRAY ARFARARR
BRE  TORETRAMREAAABEITRE
225% °

BEREAERIERERAR 25
2018 &



Directors’ Report

EEEHRE

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference in
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Audit Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Wen (as the
chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung, and
one non-executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.

The principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review and
supervision of the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management and
internal control systems, and review of the Group's financial information. The
Group's consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

AUDITOR

Martin C.K. Pong & Company resigned as auditor of the Company on 27
November 2015, and ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited was appointed by the
Board as auditor of the Company to fill the casual vacancy following the
resignation of Martin C.K. Pong & Company on 27 November 2015.

There was no change in auditor during the preceding three years from the
date of this report. A resolution will be submitted to the 2019 AGM to re-
appoint ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Ji Kaiping
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 9 July 2019
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TRER/RRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES TEERER

The Board and the management are committed to maintaining and ensuring EE@NEEEATHBFIRESEEZZLET
high standards of corporate governance as good corporate governance can JA/KF - REARITIDEE QA EEDERE 2T
safeguard the interests of all shareholders and enhance corporate value. HERACEBE AR D EMDEESARIE
The Company has adopted the CG Code as its own code of corporate AHAGZAEEELA -BHE-_Z—-N\E+=A
governance. During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company was in =+ —HIEE - ARAFIEBTLES AT ATE
compliance with the relevant code provisions set out in the CG Code except — Z %8 ~F BIMES T Pl 2 1R BE IS LR b o
for the deviations explained below.

The code
provisions

PRI

Reasons for the non-compliance and improvement actions took or to be taken

TERREARERABERDZUETD

A.1.8

A.1.81&

A.2.1

A2.1E

A.2.5

A.2.51%

As it took time for the Company to solicit a suitable insurer at reasonable commercial terms and conditions,
the Company did not arrange appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its Directors for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

ARARNAIFEEFEUNEG RN EERNEREREReENRRAR ABE—_T—-N\F+-_A=+—H
IFFE AARIARBEEENERFAREE NRR -

Since Mr. Yang Fan resigned as Chairman on 19 May 2015, the Company had not appointed any individual
to take up the post of the Chairman and role and functions of Chairman have been performed by all the
executive Directors collectively until the appointment of Mr. Ji Kaiping as the Chairman on 29 November
2018.

BEBAAER - ZE-—RAFAATNAREEFEUR ARRVEZEEANALTEEEE B MEFE2AE
B EREEBRTEFRARET EER T \F+— AT hBZALHAFTRERER AL

Up to the date of this annual report, the Company has not appointed a chief executive officer and role and
functions of chief executive officer have been performed by all the executive Directors collectively. The Board
believes that this arrangement enables the Company to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus
achieve the Company’s objectives effectively and efficiently in response to the changing environment. The
Board will continuously assess whether any changes are necessary.

HERAFRAD ARARAI|EETHRAH —BRITBRAH AERBEH2BNTESRART -EFE
1S - I TR AR R AIAE AR AF N WHATIR SR - M B RS AU B AR FIH) B AR - LA S 1 B 8 4b i
RE B2 RBETHEEREFNEMED-

The Company was not in compliance with certain code provisions as set out in the CG Code since suspension
in trading of the Shares with effect from 1 August 2016.
ARROR - ZE—REN\NA-BREFEE  AARRBETEEER TSNS T FRIE -

The Chairman has confirmed that he will take active action to improve and monitor the corporate
governance practice of the Group.

TREER EHEREBRTHNEREEASEZIORERTR
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES (cont'd) TEEBER @)

The code

provisions Reasons for the non-compliance and improvement actions took or to be taken

<F R TERRARCRAKERMZRETH

A2.7 During the year ended 31 December 2018, a formal meeting could not be arranged between Mr. Ji Kaiping,
who was appointed as Chairman on 29 November 2018, and the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) without the other executive Director present due to their tight
schedules.

A2 715 RBEE-_Z-N\FT_A=+—BUFE LRATEE (R N\F+-A-ThhAEZERERE) X
FATEF (RRBLFATES) U RHMESHRFEAREHZAMAELTHEASE-

The Chairman held a meeting with all independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors on 8 May 2019.
RZE-NGFREANR ZREMABLFATESTRTEE UEEMESHE -

A.5.1 Due to insufficient number of independent non-executive Directors and the vacancy of the office of the
Chairman, the composition of the Nomination Committee was not in compliance with the code provision
A.5.1 of the CG Code until the Company appointed Mr. Ji Kaiping, the Chairman, as chairman of the
Nomination Committee and Mr. Li Wen and Mr. Qiu Ke, independent non-executive Directors, as members of
the Nomination Committee on 29 November 2018 (the aforesaid appointment took effect from 3 December
2018).

A5 11E HRBUFATETABIERERBALZER ARAFAREZEENEARTHELEERTRHTRIEX
BEASIME BEEARARZE—NFT AT NBZEEFRELHATEAERREBZEGERE BUEHRT
BEEFNEERBREERRAZEGRE (FRZEEE-E-N\FT_A=ZHEREXN) -

c.1.2 The management of the Company did not provide a regular monthly update to the members of the Board,
but the management keeps providing information and update to the members of the Board irregularly.

C.1.21% ARREBEEBYETHNESTSHNERHBATHEN HEEE - BETTHRNESTSRERMENRE
B -

C.2.1 The Company did not conduct an annual review on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.

C.2.11& RARWER AN EEBE T - \FT AT HLEFENRREERANEERFN AR ETFE
Rt
On 25 January 2019, the Company engaged Netis Advisory Limited as its internal control adviser. The draft
internal control review report has been made available to the Company and the Company is considering the
draft internal control review report and the recommendations therein.

RZB-NF-AZ+HB ARAZEELAEEMERARAEANIEZRERM ADEEENRERBER
RARF ARABREEZBEABERERNRENERAR AR EZ-
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Group’s strategic planning and
development, and for determining the objectives, strategic and policies of the
Group while delegating day-to-day operations of the Group to management.
Besides, each member of the Board is expected to make a full and active
contribution to the Board's affairs and ensure that the Board acts in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently comprises six
members including, Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) and Mr. Guo Peiyuan as
executive Directors, Mr. An Jingwen as non-executive Director and Mr. Li
Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung as independent non-executive
Directors. One of the three independent non-executive Directors possesses
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial management
expertise, which complies with the requirement of the Listing Rules. Details of
their respective experiences and qualifications are included in the “Directors’
Biographies” section of this annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”)
on 28 March 2014 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. The Company recognizes that increasing diversity at the Board
level will support the attainment of the Company's strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The Company will also
take into consideration its own business model and specific needs from time
to time in determining the optimum composition of the Board.

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board Diversity Policy to the
Nomination Committee. The Nomination Committee will discuss and adopt
the above measurements when it reviewed the composition of the Board.
After assessing the suitability of the Directors’ skills and experience to the
Company'’s business, the Nomination Committee considered that the existing
Board were suitably qualified with professional backgrounds and/or equipped
with extensive expertise for the purposes of providing direction to and
oversight of the Group’s strategic and business in achieving its objectives.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (cont’'d)
The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness from time to time.

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Corporate Governance Practices”
above, the Company did not arrange appropriate directors’ and officers’
liabilities insurance coverage for the Directors and officers of the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

The independent non-executive Directors ensure the Board accounts for the
interests of all shareholders and that all issues are considered in an objective
manner. The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors as regards their independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and concluded that all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial, business, family
relationship among the members of the Board. All of them are free to exercise
their individual judgment.

NON-COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1), 3.10(2),
3.10A AND 3.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

Following the resignation of Mr. Zhou Guangguo as independent non-
executive Director on 29 August 2017, the Company only had two
independent non-executive Directors and two members of the Audit
Committee, thus the number of which falls below the minimum number
required under Rules 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Mr. Xu Tiantian as independent non-executive
Director on 2 September 2017, the number of independent non-executive
Directors did not represent one-third of the Board as required under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Following the resignation of Ms. Zhou Zhan as independent non-executive
Director on 20 October 2017, the Company failed to comply with Rule
3.10(2) of the Listing Rules with regard to at least one of the independent
non-executive Directors must have appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

Following the appointment of Mr. Qiu Ke as independent non-executive
Director on 1 June 2018, the Company had sufficient number of independent
non-executive Directors which represented one-third of the Board as required
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

Upon the appointment of Ms. Chen Yen Yung, who has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise, as independent non-executive Director on 17 April 2019, the
number of independent non-executive Directors had satisfied the minimum
number required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules. The Company
also met the requirement set out in Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules with
regard to at least one of the independent non-executive Directors must have
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. In addition, the Company had complied with the
requirements set out under Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules with regard to the
composition of the Audit Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, the Directors should
participate in appropriate continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors are encouraged
to attend relevant training courses to ensure that they are fully aware of
the responsibilities and obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and
relevant regulatory requirements.

All Directors have participated in continuous professional development and
provided a record of training they received for the year ended 31 December
2018 to the Company. The Company has also continuously updated Directors
on the latest developments regarding the Listing Rules and other applicable
regulatory requirements, to ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. Training record of each Directors
received for the year ended 31 December 2018 is summarised below:

TEERRE

EEREEXRRE

RBEEERTAUZ TR FACSG EFES
HEEREREER BRIUTHMEMNIRTEE
NHEAREESAEANBBEATEETSFLUARTE
WEE - ARBEEAAEEE2MBRIEIIRE
NHEREERDPAALTRARTESAAED
BEEREBRAABENEERTE

MEEZEC2HEBEZTEERI WA R ARMAMN
ERBEZZ- N\FT-A=+-BLEFEER
B E- ARR NN ERESAE L TR
REMEREEREZRNER BRTARER
RERELERTEXELNFANEZ -SEENE
ECE-N\FT A=+ -HLEFEREZNEI
SRR AT

Training
Received
BEZEIRE
Notes
M5
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) WHEFRE (FE) (M, 2)
Mr. Guo Peiyuan SIE RS A& (M, 2)
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Mr. An Jingwen TREXEE (M, 2)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIkHTES
Mr. Li Wen T AE (M, 2)
Mr. Qiu Ke P54 (M, 2)
Ms. Chen Yen Yung (appointed on 17 April 2019) BREELL (RZTE-ILFHA+TLEEEZE) N/A 38

Notes:

(1) Reading articles, training materials and updates as regards legal and regulatory
changes and matters of relevance to the Directors in the discharge of their duties.

(2) Attending training courses/seminars/conferences on topics relating to directors’
duties and the Listing Rules.

fi

(1) FHEFRETRENEEREEZHREBEEN
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MEETINGS %%

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has held 5 meetings. #HZE-_Z—\F+= ﬂ +—BIFE EFgH
The Board also passed resolutions by way of written resolutions. %"3175//2’,;% SEEMEBEEERAERIERE -

The attendance records of the Directors to these Board meetings are set out EEHEZZEEeZMNIEHIWOT

below:

Board Meetings

EZEgER
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Ji Kaiping (Chairman) WHEFRE (FE) 5/5
Mr. Guo Peiyuan (Note 1) PR A (MIEET) 4/4
(appointed on 4 April 2018) (RZZE-N\GFNANBEZRT)
Non-Executive Directors FHITES
Mr. An Jingwen (Note 2) L2 E (HE2) N/A i FR
(appointed with effect from 3 December 2018) (ZEBZZ-N\F+_A=BRER)
Ms. Mou Ling (Note 3) £+ (KFE3) 5/5
(resigned on 29 November 2018) (R=ZZE—N\F+—A=ZF+LBEE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIYKBITES
Mr. Li Wen (Note 4) (appointed on 4 April 2018) B E (HiFE4) 4/4
(RZZE—\FHEAMNBAEZT)
Mr. Qiu Ke (Note 5) (appointed on 1 June 2018) P57 e & (Ki5ES) 2/2
(RZZE—N\FAA—BEZMT)
Ms. Chen Yen Yung (appointed on 17 April 2019) BREELT (RZTE-NWEFHA+LEEEZE) N/A 35 A
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MEETINGS (cont’d)

Notes:

1. Mr. Guo Peiyuan was appointed on 4 April 2018. His attendance above were stated
by reference to the number of Board meetings held during his tenure.

2. Mr. An lJingwen was appointed with effect from 3 December 2018. No Board
meetings was held from 3 December 2018 to 31 December 2018.

3. Ms. Mou Ling resigned on 29 November 2018. Her attendance above were stated
by reference to the number of Board meetings held during her tenure.

4. Mr. Li Wen was appointed on 4 April 2018. His attendance above were stated by
reference to the number of Board meetings held during his tenure.

5. Mr. Qiu Ke was appointed on 1 June 2018. His attendance above were stated by
reference to the number of Board meetings held during his tenure.

The company secretary of the Company assists the chairman of each meeting
in preparing the agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The company secretary of the Company also keeps
detailed minutes of each meeting, which are available to all the Directors
for inspection. Draft of Board minutes are circulated to all Directors for their
comments and approved as soon as practicable after the Board meetings.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information, and they can
ask for further information or retain independent professional advisors if
necessary. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and service of
the company secretary of the Company, who is responsible for providing the
Directors with board papers and related materials and ensuring that board
procedures are followed.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company did not hold any
general meeting.

BOARD MEETINGS

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial shareholder
of the Company or Director arise, the matter will be discussed in a physical
meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written resolutions. Independent
non-executive Directors with no conflict of interest should present at meeting
dealing with conflict issues. Board committees of the Company, including the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, all
follow the applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings for
committee meetings.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Pursuant to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Since Mr. Yang Fan resigned as Chairman on 19 May 2015,
the Company had not appointed any individual to take up the post of the
Chairman and role and functions of Chairman have been performed by all the
executive Directors collectively until the appointment of Mr. Ji Kaiping as the
Chairman on 29 November 2018. Up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has not appointed a chief executive officer and role and functions
of chief executive officer have been performed by all the executive Directors
collectively. The Board believes that this arrangement enables the Company
to make and implement decisions promptly, and thus achieve the Company's
objectives effectively and efficiently in response to the changing environment.
The Board will continuously assess whether any changes are necessary.

DIRECTORS’' TERM OF APPOINTMENT AND RE-
ELECTION

In accordance with Article 72(1) of the Articles, the Directors shall be elected
or replaced by the Company in general meeting and shall serve a term of
office of three years. A Director may serve consecutive terms if re-elected by
the Company in general meeting upon the expiration of his term. Article 71
of the Articles provides that Directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company, and shall then be eligible for
reappointment.

The non-executive Director and all independent non-executive Directors are
appointed for an initial term of one year, which is automatically renewable
for successive term of one year each commencing from the expiry of the then
current term of appointment, subject to termination by either party by serving
prior notice to the other party no less than one month’s notice in writing.
Each of such appointments is subject to the rotation and retirement provisions
in the Articles.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry of
the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard as set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended
31 December 2018.

The Company has also adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct for
securities transactions by employees of the Company who are likely to be in
possession of unpublished inside information of the Company. No incident
of non-compliance of the Model Code by the relevant employees of the
Company was noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December
2018.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The current Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price sensitive
announcements, inside information announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 47 to 50.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 20 December 2005 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are
available on the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include
formulation of the remuneration policy, review and recommending to the
Board the annual remuneration policy of the Directors and members of senior
management. The Remuneration Committee has adopted the approach made
under B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code to make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management.

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall be held at least once a year
and as and when required. The Remuneration Committee currently comprises
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Qiu Ke (as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Li Wen and Ms. Chen Yen
Yung and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no Remuneration Committee
meeting was held.

The remuneration of the senior management (comprising Directors) of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018, by band is set out below:
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Number of

Remuneration Band individuals
i E AE”
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 5
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7L 22,000,000/ 7T 1

Further details of the Directors’ remuneration for the year ended 31
December 2018 are disclosed in note 12 to the financial statements contained
in this annual report.

HE-_Z-N\F+_A=+—"BLFEZEEH
B — 2B RANFIRATE 2 B AR A1 28

o

BEREAERIERERAR 35
2018 &



Corporate Governance Report
EEERBME

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 7 July 2008 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are available on
the respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited to
skills, experience and background, geographical and industry experience,
ethnicity, gender, knowledge and length of service) of the Board; to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorship; and to make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and succession
planning for Directors; and to review the Board Diversity Policy and the
measurable objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy.

To ensure changes to the Board composition can be managed without undue
disruption, there should be a formal, considered and transparent procedure
for selection, appointment and re-appointment of Directors, as well as plans
in place for orderly succession (if considered necessary), including periodical
review of such plans. The appointment of a new Director (to be an additional
director or fill a casual vacancy as and when it arises) or any re-appointment
of Directors is a matter for decision by the Board upon the recommendation
of the proposed candidate by the Nomination Committee.

The criteria to be applied in considering whether a candidate is qualified
shall be his ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the affairs of the
Company and contribute to the diversity of the Board as well as the effective
carrying out by the Board of the responsibilities which, in particular, are set
out as follows:—

e  participating in Board meetings to bring an independent judgment on
issues of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts;

e taking the lead where potential conflicts of interests arise;
e serving on the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and

the Nomination Committee (in the case of candidate for non-executive
Director) and other relevant Board committees, if invited,;
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (cont’d)

e bringing a range of business and financial experience to the Board,
giving the Board and any committees on which he serves the benefit
of his skills, expertise, and varied backgrounds and qualifications and
diversity through attendance and participation in the Board/committee
meetings;

e scrutinising the Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate
goals and objectives, and monitoring the reporting of performance;

e ensuring the committee on which he serves to perform their powers and
functions conferred on them by the Board; and

e conforming to any requirement, direction and regulation that may
from time to time be prescribed by the Board or contained in the
constitutional documents of the Company or imposed by legislation or
the Listing Rules, where appropriate.

If the candidate is proposed to be appointed as an independent non-executive
Director, his independence shall be assessed in accordance with, among other
things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, subject to
any amendments as may be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time.
Where applicable, the totality of the candidate’s education, qualifications and
experience shall also be evaluated to consider whether he has the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise for filling the office of an independent non-executive Director with
such qualifications or expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least once a year
and as and when required. The Nomination Committee currently comprises
one executive Director, namely Ji Kaiping (as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Wen, Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen Yung.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no Nomination Committee
meeting was held.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has had the Audit Committee since 2004 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the CG Code which are available on the
respective websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. It is responsible
for reviewing the Group’s financial reporting, risk management, internal
controls and making recommendations to the Board. The Audit Committee
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Wen (as the chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Qiu Ke and Ms. Chen Yen
Yung and one non-executive Director, namely Mr. An Jingwen.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (cont’d)
During the year ended 31 December 2018, no Audit Committee meeting was
held.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company seeks to maintain a balance between meeting shareholders’
expectations and prudent capital management with a sustainable dividend
policy. The Company’s dividend policy aims to allow shareholders of the
Company to participate in the Company's profit and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for the Group's future growth. In proposing any
dividend payout, the Company would consider various factors including but
not limited to the Group's overall results of operation, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements, liquidity
position, future expansion plans, general economic conditions, business
cycle of the Group’s business and other internal or external factors that may
have an impact on the business or financial performance and position of the
Group. Any declaration and payment as well as the amount of the dividends
will be subject to any restrictions under all applicable requirements under the
Companies Ordinance, the Articles, the Listing Rules and any other applicable
laws and regulations. The Company does not have any predetermined
dividend distribution proportion or distribution ratio. Any future declarations
of dividends may or may not reflect the Company's historical declarations of
dividends and will be at the absolute discretion of the Directors.

The Board will continually review the dividend policy and reserves the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend, modify and/or cancel the
dividend policy at any time, and the dividend policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Company that dividends will be paid in
any particular amount and/or in no way obligate the Company to declare a
dividend at any time or from time to time.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION
During the year ended 31 December 2018, the remuneration paid/payable to
ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, the auditor of the Company, is set out below:

TEERRE

B BB B <&
BE-T-\Ft-A=t-ALFE EH/E
AR R LA E 2 R FHAERA
WS BHMT

Fee paid/
payable
e ENER
HK$
BT
Audit services: ERRE
Audit of the financial statements FIZ B RE 800,000
Non-audit services: FERRTE :
Interim report engagement hHEIRE LR 180,000

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is also responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
with its written terms of reference as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management of the Company;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees of the Company and Directors;
and

(e) to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal control systems and oversees such systems on an ongoing
basis, while ensuring a review of the effectiveness of these systems of the
Group is conducted at least annually. The scope of such review covers all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls.
The Group's risk management and internal control systems are designed to
managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss.

m%#‘*ﬂé\%ﬁb
EFRNARERETMEREET FII0
SR

ES)

(@) HIRTRBAARRNEEEARERER:

(b) BEREREZRARASREEENEIR
FEEXRR:

(0 BRELERARDEETERLREERENE
R S H M

(d) HIF] BARERARAEEREENRTE
ARaRFM(WE) R

(e) BMAARTETTANBEREREEE
NBENER -
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)
The Board’s Responsibilities for the Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems (cont’d)

The Board has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee, and management
will provided a confirmation to the Audit Committee and the Board on the
effectiveness of these systems.

As disclosed in the sub-section head “Corporate Governance Practices”
above, the Company did not conduct an annual review on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018. On 25 January 2019, the Company engaged
Netis Advisory Limited as its internal control adviser. The draft internal control
review report has been made available to the Company and the Company is
considering the draft internal control review report and the recommendations
therein.

Main Features of the Risk Management System

The Company recognises that good risk management is essential for the long-
term and sustainable growth of a business. The Group’s risk management
structure and the major responsibilities of each role of the structure are
summarized below:

BEEERERAIBZES @
EESHEREERANERZASGNSEE
(%)
BEEREEEAREER N PELOBE (R
REAE UEERZEE MEEBEAERE
EeREEERARZERNERY -

M EX [REERTR] DEAMPE ARAIL
BRAEEBE_Z - N\FT_A=FT—HLF
EHREBEEMABEZERRNERIEETFEE
B R ZEBE-NF-AZ+HB KAAFEESA
EERERARAEAMEZER - ARFEME
RUEARMEERRIRERRE MAXTABREZER
AREERAT I ENERA R EEH -

EREEAGNEERH

ARARA TENRRERYEERATFESR
RIFEZE-AFENERERRBLRBEANZA
ENT2RAFRNT

Board Audit Management Risk

N # Committee # _ Owners
g = = o EIEE "”

£F EHEEE REE EREEA

Role Major Responsibilities
A TERE
Board — determines the business strategies and objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives;
BEFg - BEASHEZERRRERR RIATEEASERERKBBRABEZMNERMTEMEE
- oversees management in the design, implement and monitoring of the risk management and internal
control systems;
- EEEREEYHRRERENMANIEZERSNR Btk
— oversees the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an ongoing basis and ensures
the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems;
- FEEEASENEREBRABEERARBERAAFBIRERSBEREGRNEREERANIDE
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd) [EEEE K A ZPIE4 (@)

Main Features of the Risk Management System (cont’d) AREERZRGZNTIESY (&)

Role Major Responsibilities

AE FTERE

Audit Committee - reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at least annually,
and such review should cover all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls;

BEREE® - ELBE-ARBRANASERREERADEERFNERELRZERNEBEMBERNEE BIEM

BoReERAREE:

—  reviews the emerging risks of the Group annually, and the risk management and the internal controls in
place to address those risks;
- BFEHASEFEENRAR WETRREERAIMEEBRZERER

— discusses the risk management and internal control systems with management of the Group to ensure
that the management of the Group has performed its duty to have an effective systems. The discussion
should include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes and
budget of the Group's accounting and financial reporting function and to rectify any weaknesses that
may be revealed from time to time;

- HEAREEEREENRARETERABEZRS UERASEEEECEBETABERLANES -G
NmEREAEEN G LM BRRBE T cER BETARKKER BIRELEBAEERSR
B+ WAL IE BT A8 B IR A (E e 5578

—  considers major investigation findings on risk management and internal control matters as delegated by
the Board or on its own initiative and the Group’s management'’s response to these findings;

- EEFENZRATIY ZEFHRAREERRANEREENEZRNEERUNRFIEEETREYZE

HERZEE:
Management - designs, implements and ongoing assesses the Group's risk management and internal control systems;
ERE — REH BEREABEFEAEENRRERERANEZERR:

- gives prompt responses to, and follow up the findings on risk management and internal control matters
as delegated by the Board, on Audit Committee’s initiative or raised by the external risk management
and internal control review advisor(s);

- EEFENER FEXZEFPIIINMAREERNIERRATBERRL HRBREERABELTE
B 45 3R K R [0 E F R

—  provides confirmation to the Board and the Audit Committee on the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems;

- MEFFLRERZESHIARBERENAMEERLENE RN

Risk Owners —  ultimately accountable for ensuring the risk is managed appropriately; and
ER == - BREEHRERGIEEERE: R

— responsible for, or oversight of, activities to manage each identified risk.
— BENEEEERCDHIRREES-
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TREERKRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd) [FE[EEE K A R4 (@)

Main Features of the Internal Control System APEIEAGHNETESE

The Company has in place an internal control system which enables the AATIDEHANPEIRRG L EZGFARNEBEE
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency of BEAEWLEAMESN MERENERGFEER
operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with applicable A5 iRH B2 ZIELRMER LT -

laws and regulations. The components of the framework are shown as follow:

Control Environment -

SRR

Risk Assess

2 fez BF

ment -

Control Activities -

EEEE

Information and -

Communication

BEMkBER

Monitoring

-
ER

a set of standards, processes and structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal control across
the Group
—ERETASEAMEIERMEBNED 2T RERE-

a dynamic and iterative process for identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group's objectives,
forming a basis for determining how risks should be managed.

—EBREZERIE - LB RS ERAEE B IR ER - K EE 00 E 12 E A K -

actions established by policies and procedures to help ensure that management directives to mitigate
risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

REBRNIEFREILITE  UBERRITEREREEENK B ENEBRMELNET -

internal and external communication to provide the Group with the information needed to carry out
day-to-day controls.

MEB RSB BIAR AL BB HET A REREATENER -

ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain whether each components of internal control is present
and functioning.

SERERNFEASARNDEEN S TREEFELEFLER -

Process used to Identify, Evaluate and Manage Significant Risks &3 TR ETEEARKBRNERF

Identification -

EE 3l

Evaluation

il

Management -

=g

472

identify ownership of risks, business objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of objectives.

HpEBREEAN EBEELAUREYEERERNEAR

analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

SRR M R F IR ERARES -

consider the risk responses, ensure effective communication with the Board in respect of the risks and
on-going monitor the residual risks.

ZREREY BREAEEZSERRBETAERER R 64 L
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)
Process used to Review the Effectiveness of the Risk
Management and Internal Control Systems and to Resolve
Material Internal Control Defects

Risk assessment report and internal control review report will be submitted
to the Audit Committee and the Board annually. The Board, through the
Audit Committee, will perform a review on the effectiveness of the Group's
risk management and internal control systems, including, but not limited
to, (i) the changes, in the nature and extent of significant risks and the
Company’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the external
environment, (ii) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring
of risks and of the internal control systems, (iii) the extent and frequency of
communication of monitoring results to the Audit Committee and the Board
which enables them to assess control of the Company and the effectiveness
of risk management, (iv) significant control failings or weaknesses that have
been identified, and (v) the effectiveness of the Company’s processes for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance. The scope of such review
will cover the adequacy of resources, qualification and experience of staff of
the Group’s accounting and financial reporting functions and their attitude
against internal control of the Group.

As disclosed in the sub-section head “Corporate Governance Practices”
above, the Company did not conduct an annual review on the effectiveness
of the risk management and internal control systems of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2018. On 25 January 2019, the Company engaged
Netis Advisory Limited as its internal control adviser. The draft internal control
review report has been made available to the Company and the Company is
considering the draft internal control review report and the recommendations
therein.

TEERRE
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TREERKRE

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (cont'd)
Procedures and Internal Controls for the Handling and
Dissemination of Inside Information

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of the relevant
obligations under the SFO and the Listing Rules. Certain reasonable measures
have been taken from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which
include:

— access of inside information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on a need-to-know basis.

— transmission of inside information in electronic form should be
password-protected.

—  prohibit employees to discuss inside information in public area.

— code names are assigned to confidential projects so that any reference
to them would not be linked to the projects themselves to minimize
possibilities of unintentional leakage.

— trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care.

- confidentiality agreements are in place before the Group enters into
significant negotiations.

—  officers and employees other than the designated representative
are prohibited to speak externally on behalf of the Company when
communicating with external parties such as the media, analysts or
investors.
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INTERNAL AUDIT FUNCTION

The Company does not have an internal audit department. The Board
has reviewed the need for an internal audit function and is of the view
that in light of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the
Group, as opposed to diverting resources to establish a separate internal
audit department, it would be more cost effective to appoint external
independent professionals to perform independent review of the adequacy
and effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of the
Group. Nevertheless, the Board will continue to review at least annually the
need for an internal audit department.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company engaged an external professional company secretarial services
provider, Uni-1 Corporate Services Limited (“Uni-1"), to provide compliance
and full range of company secretarial services to the Group in order to assist
the Group to cope with the changing regulatory environment and to suit
difference commercial needs.

Ms. Chan Pui Shan, Bessie (“Ms. Chan"), the representative of Uni-1, has
been appointed as the Company Secretary with effect from 4 April 2018.
Her primary corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Jason Shi, the
assistant to the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Ms. Chan has undertaken not less
than 15 hours of relevant professional training in accordance with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS TO CONVENE A
GENERAL MEETING AND PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING
FORWARD PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS BY
SHAREHOLDERS

Pursuant to Article 48 of the Articles, general meetings of the Company shall
be convened by the Board on the requisition of members pursuant to the
provisions of the statutes. Pursuant to sub-section 567(1) of the Companies
Ordinance, directors required under section 566 of the Companies Ordinance
to call a general meeting must call a meeting within 21 days after the date
on which they become subject to the requirement. A general meeting called
under sub-section 567(1) of the Companies Ordinance must be held on a date
not more than 28 days after the date of the notice convening the meeting.

Shareholders holding not less than 2.5% of the total voting rights of all
shareholders can submit a written requisition or in electronic form to move a
resolution at the annual general meeting of the Company, or who are no less
than 50 shareholders, pursuant to section 615 of the Companies Ordinance.
The requisition must state the resolution, accompanied by a statement with
respect to the matter referred to in any proposed resolution of the business to
be dealt with at the general meeting of the Company. It must also be signed
by all requisitionists for the attention of the Company not less than 6 weeks
before the annual general meeting to which the requisition relate.
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EEERBME

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant information to
its shareholders in a timely manner. Annual and interim reports offer
comprehensive operational and financial performance information to its
shareholders and the annual general meeting of the Company provides
a forum for shareholders to exchange views directly with the Board. The
Company regards the annual general meeting of the Company as an
important event and all Directors, senior management and external auditors
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of the Company to
address shareholders’ queries. All the shareholders of the Company are given
a minimum of 20 clear business days’ notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company supports the CG
Code’s principle to encourage shareholders’ participation. The Company has
also complied with the requirements concerning voting by poll under the
Listing Rules.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles is available at the Company’s website www.nur. com.hk and the
Stock Exchange’s website. No changes have been made to the Articles during
the year.

PROCEDURES BY WHICH ENQUIRES MAY BE PUT TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders of the Company may send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary of the Company
by mail at the Company’s registered office at Unit 2806, 28th Floor, Wu
Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The Company
Secretary is responsible for forwarding communications to the Board and/or
relevant Board committees of the Company, where appropriate, to answer the
shareholders’ questions.

PROCEDURES FOR NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS FOR
ELECTION

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person for
election as a Director are available and accessible on the Company’s website
at www.nur.com.hk.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

NATIONAL UNITED RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED
BEXRBEERZERERD T

(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We were engaged to audit the consolidated financial statements of National
United Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 51 to 111, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group. Because of the significance of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion
on these consolidated financial statements. In all other respects, in our
opinion, the consolidated financial statements have been properly prepared in
compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion

1. Certain opening balances and corresponding figures
Our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2017 (the “2017 Financial
Statements”), which form the basis for the corresponding figures
presented in the current year’s consolidated financial statements, was
disclaimed because of the significance of the possible effect of the
limitations on the scope of our audit and the material uncertainty in
relation to going concern, details of which are set out in our audit report
dated 9 July 2019. Accordingly, we were then unable to form an opinion
on the 2017 Financial Statements.
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B ZBERE

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (cont'd) TRRER @0
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (cont'd) TRRERZEE (F)
2. Limited accounting books and records of two subsidiaries—First 2. WREKBAAZERET]RERLE -AILE

Concept Industrial Group Limited and iFrontier LLC

Due to the insufficiency of supporting documentation and explanations
for accounting books and records in respect of the First Concept
Industrial Group Limited and iFrontier LLC for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017, we were unable to carry out audit procedures
to satisfy ourselves as to whether the following income and expenses
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and the assets
and liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, and the segment
information and other related disclosure notes in relation to the Group,
as included in the consolidated financial statements of the Group, have
been accurately recorded and properly accounted for in the consolidated

financial statements:

H#LEFER A d RiFrontier LLC

BN EBEILEEXEEAR A A KiFrontier
LLCRZ-_Z-NFRZE—tF+=A
=+ -BUEFEZEHES RO EFEAXY
RREARE BERENTEREFUSE
EEMTIBE_Z-—N\FRZE—tF+=
A=+ BALEFEZRARBRIER=ZZ—N
ER-_FE—+E+-_A=t+—HZAEREA
B ARDBERREME SEBEARMZE
BB (ERERAMBREMESE)R
GERGAMBHRERERTBEZAAR:

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+—-BLEE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Income and expenses: WARBEX:
Administrative expenses THHAX - (36,734)
Loss and total comprehensive FREBERZEBEREAHE
loss for the year - (36,734)
For the year ended 31 December
BZE+-HA=+—-H0LEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets and liabilities: EERAEE:
Prepayments, deposits and TEAT FRIE - iR & K E R WK IE
other receivables 634 634
Bank and cash balances WITRRESEFT 925 925
Trade payables B E SR (38,266) (38,266)
Other payables and accruals HEMENREBERESER (39,724) (39,724)
Net liabilities BEF5E (76,431) (76,431)
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION (cont’d)
Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion (cont’d)

3.

Loss on deconsolidation of the subsidiaries

As explained in note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, certain
subsidiaries of the Company have been deconsolidated from the Group
since 1 January 2016. No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy
ourselves as to whether the Company had lost control of the aforesaid
certain subsidiaries on 1 January 2016 and throughout the years ended
31 December 2017 and 2018. Accordingly we were unable to satisfy
ourselves to the deconsolidated subsidiaries, as to the completeness of
the transactions of the Group for the years ended 31 December 2017
and 2018 and the Group’s finanical position as at those date.

Impairment losses on interests in associates

We have not been provided with sufficient appropriate audit evidence
whether the impairment losses on interests in associates of approximately
HK$208,944,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 should be
recorded in 2016 or 2017.

Borrowings

No sufficient evidence has been provided to satisfy ourselves, in relation
to the existence, rights and obligations and valuation of the borrowings
of approximately HK$40,535,000 and HK$42,467,000 as at 31
December 2018 and 2017 respectively.

Going Concern

We draw attention to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements
which mentions that the Group incurred a loss of approximately
HK$15,308,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 and as at 31
December 2018 the Group has net current liabilities and net liabilities
of approximately HK$682,256,000 and HK$599,388,000 respectively.
These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis on the assumption that the proposed
restructuring of the Company will be successfully completed, and that,
following the restructuring, the Group will continue to meet in full
its financial obligations as they fall due in the foreseeable future. The
consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments that
would result from a failure to complete the restructuring. We consider
that the disclosures are adequate. However, in view of the extent of the
uncertainty relating to the completion of the restructuring, we disclaim
our opinion in respect of the material uncertainty relating to the going
concern basis.

Any adjustments to the figures as described from points 1 to 5 above might
have a significant consequential effect on the Group's results and cash flows
for the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 and the financial positions
of the Group as at 31 December 2018 and 2017, and the related disclosures
thereof in the consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B BET RS

DIRECTORS’' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but
to do so.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by
the HKICPA and to issue an auditor’s report. However, because of the matters
described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, we
were not able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a
basis for an audit opinion on these consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

REPORT ON OTHER MATTERS UNDER SECTIONS
407(2) AND 407(3) OF THE HONG KONG COMPANIES
ORDINANCE

In respect alone of the inability to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the matters described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section
of our report:

e we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting records had
been kept; and

e we have not obtained all the information and explanations that, to the
best of our knowledge and belief, are necessary and material for the
purpose of the audit.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Sze Lin Tang

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number P03614
Hong Kong, 9 July, 2019
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

mEEER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

Notes 2018 2017
B &t —E-N\F —E—+5F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&ERT FHET
Revenue W &= 7 54,697 58,566
Cost of sales & KA (12,369) (25,638)
Gross profit E5 42,328 32,928
Other income H A A 8 15,619 3,956
Administrative and other operating THREMEERS
expenses (22,841) (122,334)
Profit/(loss) from operations BERA (FE) 35,106 (85,450)
Finance cost A& AR 9 (51,753) (52,790)
Fair value loss of derivative instruments T4 T EZ A FEEE - (276)
Reversal of impairment losses on WM BEREEY
property, plant and equipment BB E 1RO 1,339 1,842
Impairment losses on intangible assets &2 & E R EEE - (497)
Loss before tax RR B A0 &5 18 (15,308) (137,171)
Income tax expense Frigimt 10 - -
Loss for the year FREER 11 (15,308) (137,171)
Attributable to: LT ALES:
Owners of the Company EiN/NEIEZ ¥ =N (14,673) (131,036)
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 2 (635) (6,135)
(15,308) (137,171)
Loss per share attributable to ERABREEAEESRER
owners of the Company 13
Basic (HK cents per share) AR (FRBW) (0.23) (2.04)
Diluted (HK cents per share) g (ZhoBI) (0.23) (2.04)
ERBAERRARAT 51
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

REZEBAR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

Note 2018 2017
Bt —E-N\E —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHET
Loss for the year FREE 11 (15,308) (137,171)
Other comprehensive loss: Hi2HEER :
Items that may be reclassified to AR EF P2 Em 2 HE -
profit or loss.
Exchange differences on translation of ~ BEBIINEBLMEE 2
foreign operations EHER 11,275 (5,422)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREMEEEEE (4,033) (142,593)
Total comprehensive loss for RTATEEER
the year attributable to: THEEEE:
Owners of the Company FiN/NETEF =N (3,048) (136,646)
Non-controlling interests IE o AR 4 25 (985) (5,947)
(4,033) (142,593)
52 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e TR R

As at 31 December 2018 R=—Z—N\FE+-A=+—H

Notes 2018 2017
B &t —E-)N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M- WE KFE 15 168,491 189,355
168,491 189,355
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables JEUWE 5K 17 559 438
Prepayments, deposits and BRI RIE ke R EHM
other receivables J& Wk IE 18 195,117 165,446
Bank and cash balances RITMRBEESET 19 1,119 6,580
196,795 172,464
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables FETE 53K 20 38,590 38,605
Other payables and accruals HMENREBERESER 21 237,795 248,199
Borrowings HE 22 159,035 167,240
Convertible bonds Al A % (E 5 23 232,551 198,920
Non-convertible bonds TARERES 24 90,500 90,352
Finance lease payables FER R AR EHRIE 25 97,929 53,284
Tax payable FE I %118 22,651 23,276
879,051 819,876
Net current liabilities RBAEEFEE (682,256) (647,412)
Total assets less current HEERABDER
liabilities (513,765) (458,057)
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Finance lease payables B ERERE 25 85,623 137,298
85,623 137,298
NET LIABILITIES B EFE (599,388) (595,355)
Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital Ji& 7 26 3,178,754 3,178,754
Reserves % (3,778,158) (3,775,110)
Equity attributable to owners of NATEB ANELER
the Company (599,404) (596,356)
Non-controlling interests FEERR S 16 1,001
TOTAL EQUITY BER (599,388) (595,355)
Approved by: Ji Kaiping Guo Peiyuan
MEERAZ LET BT R
Director Director
) 3
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mEERgER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ANRAERAEE
Equity
Share- component Foreign
based of currency Non-
Share payment  convertible translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital reserve bonds reserve losses Total interests equity
UR%BA
EffiRe URREHZ
BA& 1] BEHD  BRERE 2 ER ag FRRER EY 34
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TER FEL TEL FEL FAEL TEr FEL
At 1 January 2017 R-Z2-t%-fA-B 3,178,754 34,311 60,141 1,192 (3,736,044) (461,646) 6,948 (454,698)
Loss for the year FNESR - - - - (131,036) (131,036) (6,135) (137,171)
Other comprehensive income/(l0ss)
for the year FRELEERE/ (BE) - - - (5,610) - (5,610) 188 (5.422)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAFBRE - - - (5,610) (131,036) (136,646) (5,947) (142,593)
Equity component of convertible bonds TARES BRTH - - 1,936 - - 1,936 - 1,936
Lapsed of share options BRI RN - (20,283) - - 20,283 - - -
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018
3,178,754 14,028 62,077 (4,418) (3,846,797) (596,356) 1,001 (595,355)
Loss for the year FAESR - - - - (14,673) (14,673) (635) (15,308)
Other comprehensive income/(loss)
for the year FREMZEYS/ (K]) - - - 11,625 - 11,625 (350) 11,275
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREAFBRE - - - 11,625 (14,673) (3,048) (985) (4,033)
Lapsed of share options BIREAR - (14,028) - - 14,028 - - -
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+ZA=T—-H 3,178,754 - 62,077 7,207 (3,847,442) (599,404) 16 (599,388)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

n _\éiﬁﬁﬁéi

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities REEKZRERE
Loss before tax W B Bl 5 18 (15,308) (137,171)
Adjustments for: BMTFIEEFIEFE:
Depreciation e 13,096 10,932
Fair value gain of derivative instruments PTEITAQNFEKRS - 276
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary BB A F Z W - (942)
Loss on disposal of property, HELEEMHE BE R
plant and equipment BECEE - 1,526
Loss on property, plant and equipment M HE RREREEE
written off - 37,010
Loss on disposal of financial assets at HEERAFESABR
fair value through profit or loss BEZHFALEHBERZ
ERMEEZEE - 421
Reversal of impairment losses on property, W BB MEERESERD
plant and equipment (1,339) (1,842)
Impairment losses on intangible assets EmREAEZREERE - 497
Interest income F B A (39) (158)
Interest expenses FERX 51,707 52,790
Operating cash flows before working EELASEFHMzKEReRE
capital changes 48,117 (36,661)
Change in trade receivables R E 5 # (121) (34)
Change in prepayments, deposits and i‘ﬁﬁ%’xﬁ Re REAM
other receivables JE U FhoE (29,671) 21,960
Net proceeds from disposal of financial ﬁ%iﬁﬁjrﬁﬂ')\%#z
assets at fair value through profit or loss ERMEEZFERIBFE - 1,891
Change in trade payables T E 5 (15) (6,344)
Change in other payables and accruals HMENREBERESERE (17,351) 91,915
Cash generated from operations LELEEMBZRE 959 72,727
Income tax paid EAFFTSH (625) (1,220)
Net cash generated from RETBHMBZRLFHE
operating activities 334 71,507
Cash flows from investing activities RETBZHERE
Interest received 2 UFLE 39 158
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEEWME WE MEE (248) (78,331)
Purchases of intangible assets BEEREAE - (497)
Net cash inflow arising on disposal HE—BWBARZFRERA
of a subsidiary - 2,123
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWHE BFE RREMERIE
plant and equipment - 11,451
Net cash used in investing activities RETBHFMARSEE (209) (65,096)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

RERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHBT
Cash flows from financing activities METBHZRERE
Proceeds from new borrowing MERFTEMIE - 11,562
Repayment of borrowings BEEER - (61,777)
Repayment of non-convertible bonds BETATBRRES - (11,000)
Repayment of finance lease payables BREEMNREHERE (18,012) (39,921)
Net cash used in financing activities BMETEFMARS FE (18,012) (101,136)
Net decrease in cash and REREFHREBEZRD FHE
cash equivalents (17,887) (94,725)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes EXFH w8 12,426 (11,152)
Cash and cash equivalents at FYzHeRERBE®ER
beginning of year 6,580 112,457
Cash and cash equivalents at FRZESREREELER
end of year 1,119 6,580
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents BRE&RZERAEESEBEBH 22
Bank and cash balances WITRREHEFT 1,119 6,580
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

National United Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability. The address of its
registered office and principal place of business is Unit 2806, 28th Floor,
Wu Chung House, 213 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares (the “Shares”) are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of its subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Going concern

The Group incurred a loss attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$15,308,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018
and as at 31 December 2018 the Group had net current liabilities of
approximately HK$682,256,000 and net liabilities of approximately
HK$599,388,000 respectively. These conditions indicate the existence of
a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the Group may be
unable to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal
course of business.

Trading in the shares of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited was suspended on 1 August 2016.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis
on the basis that the restructuring of the Group will be successfully
completed, and that, following the restructuring, the Group will continue
to meet in full its financial obligation as they fall due in the foreseeable
future.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

58

BASIS OF PREPARATION (cont'd)

Deconsolidation of subsidiaries

The financial statements have been prepared based on the books and
records currently maintained by the Group. However, due to the loss
of contact with former directors, the directors of the Company (the
"Directors”) considered that the control over the following subsidiaries
has been lost from 1 January 2016. The results, assets and liabilities and
cash flows of these subsidiaries were deconsolidated from the financial
statements of the Group from 1 January 2016:

INERREGEER A A
(formerly known as: LU 8|58 EEAER 2 A])

FITEERBEERRAA]
EFAEENEEERERAR
ERmBIEEEERABRAA
IRERBEESBRAR
e RmEHEERAR
IWRERBEEE S ERA A
By (LB)REAEEBRAA
IR RIGEIEEEIRER AR
EEMERRERRAA

BE (L) REAEEBRAA
AR KEIERE AR AR
FITEBLERBR AR

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and revised Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that are relevant to its
operations and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2018. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards;
Hong Kong Accounting Standards; and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to
the Group's accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s financial
statements and amounts reported for the current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective. The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new HKFRSs but is not yet in a position to state
whether these new HKFRSs would have a material impact on its results of
operations and financial position.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
HKFRSs, accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, as modified by the revaluation of derivative instruments
and investments which are carried at their fair values. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$") and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of key assumptions and estimates. It also requires
the management of the Group (the “Management”) to exercise its
judgments in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgments and areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to these financial statements, are disclosed in note 5 to
the financial statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
financial statements are set out below.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries made up to 31 December. Subsidiaries
are entities over which the Group has control. The Group controls an
entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. The Group has power over an entity
when the Group has existing rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the
entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting rights
as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to determine
whether it has control. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date the
control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a loss
of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value of the
consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment retained
in that subsidiary and (ii) the Company’s share of the net assets of that
subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any
related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EXSFTEE @)

Consolidation (cont’d)

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial position
and consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity. Non-
controlling interests are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between the non-controlling interests and owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Business combination and goodwiill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of a
subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is measured
at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued, liabilities incurred and contingent consideration. Acquisition-
related costs are recognised as expenses in the periods in which the
costs are incurred and the services are received. Identifiable assets
and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded
as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Company.

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. Goodwill
is measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The method of
measuring impairment losses of goodwill is the same as that of other
assets as stated in the accounting policy “Impairment of assets” below.
Impairment losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
acquisition for the purpose of impairment testing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Business combination and goodwill (cont’d)

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially measured
at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share of the net
fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities at the
acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of an entity but is not control or joint control
over those policies. The existence and effect of potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable or convertible, including potential voting
rights held by other entities, are considered when assessing whether the
Group has significant influence. In assessing whether a potential voting
right contributes to significant influence, the holder’s intention and
financial ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements by the equity method and is initially recognised at cost.
Identifiable assets and liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are
measured at their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group's share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and is
tested for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the investment
is impaired. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of acquisition is recognised
in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group's share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or losses
is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share of the post-
acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated
reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently reports profits, the
Group resumes recognising its share of those profits only after its share
of the profits equals the share of losses not recognised.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Associates (cont’d)

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a loss of
significant influence represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any investment
retained in that associate and (ii) the Group's share of the net assets
of that associate plus any remaining goodwill relating to that associate
and any related accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the
Group continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure the
retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its associates
are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interests in the associates.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong Dollars, which is the Company's functional and
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial statements
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency on initial recognition using the exchange rates prevailing
on the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the end of each
reporting period. Gains and losses resulting from this translation
policy are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in foreign
currencies are translated using the exchange rates at the dates when
the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in other
comprehensive income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income. When a gain
or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Foreign currency translation (cont’d)
(c) Translation on consolidation
The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have
a functional currency different from the Company's presentation
currency are translated into the Company’s presentation currency as
follows:

(i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial position
presented are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

(i) Income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

(iii) All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the foreign
currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation
of the net investment in foreign entities and of borrowings are
recognised in the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are recognised
in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity
and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the period in
which they are incurred.
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64

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EREFBR (@)
Property, plant and equipment (cont'd) ME BEKRRKE (&)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at rates ME - BENEGITE DR RAEEEATE

sufficient to write off their cost less their residual values over the
estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

RERAMEERTRRBEEN L EAER
EAE EEBFRMT

Leasehold improvement 20%-33% EWELEE 20%-33%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 9%-20% %{%A ETEEENRKREG 9%-20%
Computer equipment 9%-20% BIERE 9%-20%
Motor vehicles and trucks 6%-25% AERES 6%-25%
The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed REREMRGEHT L AEFGREE 0 F
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. BEBEITER X (MER) -

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is the HEWE BENMEEHEOWSHEIBTHER

difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of
the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

SEELEHEENEENECHMNEZE LN

BRER -

Leases HE
Operating leases BEHE
Leases that do not substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and 3 45 78 & EE P A RE R P B BV M [0l 3R 2 48 K3

rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as operating leases.
Lease payments (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

DEBREASENHENT REEHE-HE
FORGEHR A B EARBRNERNRZBS % R
HHAA B ERER R

Finance leases HEHE

Leases that substantially transfer to the Group all the risks and rewards NG EBEMAEZ BRBHRK RO RERE
of ownership of assets are accounted for as finance leases. At the z]&;‘%lﬁ’ﬁﬁ‘;i’,]aﬂ%@ﬂﬁfﬂig AR ENA
commencement of the lease term, a finance lease is capitalised at the R IRHEEE AT ELNZEAE XA

lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments, each determined at the inception of the lease.

The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement

ZHE(REREETYREE) 2BEET
IAE AR -

HEAZ BB BRI SRR T I E RSB

of financial position as finance lease payable. Lease payments are BHERBE - HERBRL ISR AEE B
apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the FEREAEEEE EERNSHEBAARND

outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period
during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability.

Assets under finance leases are depreciated the same as owned assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the statement
of financial position when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets; or the Group
neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets but has not retained control on the assets. On
derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received is recognised
in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in
the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis
where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract whose terms
require delivery of the asset within the timeframe established by the
market concerned, and are initially recognised at fair value, plus directly
attributable transaction costs except in the case of investments at fair
value through profit or loss. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of investments at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets of the Group are classified as financial assets at
amortised cost.

Financial assets at amortised cost
Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are classified
under this category if they satisfy both of the following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose objective is to
hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less loss allowance for expected credit losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EXSFTEE @)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses on
financial assets at amortised cost. Expected credit losses are the weighted
average of credit losses with the respective risks of a default occurring as
the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the expected
credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of that financial instrument (“lifetime expected credit losses”) for
trade receivables or if the credit risk on that financial instrument has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for
that financial instrument at an amount equal to the portion of lifetime
expected credit losses that represents the expected credit losses that
result from default events on that financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the loss
allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required amount is
recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits
with banks and other financial institutions, and short-term highly liquid
investments which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. Bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Group's
cash management are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to
the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs.
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities and equity
instruments are set out below.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period.

Convertible bonds

Convertible loans which entitle the holder to convert the loans into
a fixed number of equity instruments at a fixed conversion price are
regarded as compound instruments consist of a liability and an equity
component. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
is estimated using the prevailing market interest rate for similar non-
convertible debt. The fair value of any derivative features embedded in
the compound instruments is included in the liability component. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible loans and
the fair values assigned to the liability component,
embedded option for the holder to convert the loans into equity of the
Group, is included in equity as capital reserve. The liability component is
carried as a liability at amortised cost using the effective interest method
until extinguished on conversion or redemption.

representing the

Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible loans based on their relative carrying
amounts at the date of issue. The portion relating to the equity
component is charged directly to equity.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are stated initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract
with a customer with reference to the customary business practices and
excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. For a contract
where the period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)

Revenue from contracts with customers (cont'd)

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation
by transferring control over a product or service to a customer.
Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws that apply to that
contract, a performance obligation can be satisfied over time or at a
point in time. A performance obligation is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group's performance;

- the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that the
customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced; or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is recognised
by reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction of that
performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in
time when the customer obtains control of the product or service.

Other revenue
(a) Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

(b) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the
effective interest method.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave and long service leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont’'d)

Employee benefits (cont’d)

(b) Pension obligations
The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject
to a ceiling of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The Group also participates in a defined contribution retirement
scheme organised by the government in the People’s Republic of
China (the "PRC"). The Group is required to contribute a specific
percentage of the payroll of its employees to the retirement scheme.
The contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the retirement scheme. No
forfeited contributions may be used by the employers to reduce the
existing level of contributions.

(c) Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the dates when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those benefits and
when the Group recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.

Share-based payments
The Group issues equity-settled share-based payments to certain
directors, employees and consultants.

Equity-settled share-based payments to directors and employees are
measured at the fair value (excluding the effect of non market-based
vesting conditions) of the equity instruments at the date of grant. The
fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based
payments is expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of shares that will eventually vest and
adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions.

Equity-settled share-based payments to consultants are measured at
the fair value of the services rendered or if the fair value of the services
rendered cannot be reliably measured, at the fair value of the equity
instruments granted. The fair value is measured at the date the Group
receives the services and is recognised as an expense.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EXSFTEE @)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a capitalisation rate
to the expenditures on that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted
average of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than borrowings
made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Taxation
Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss because it excludes
items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Taxation (cont’d)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period when the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Related parties
A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(A) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the
Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is @ member of the key management personnel of the Company
or of a parent of the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Related parties (cont'd)

B

72

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions
applies:

(i) The entity and the Company are members of the same group
(which means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(ili) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other
entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to
the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan, the sponsoring
employers are also related to the Group.

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (A).

(vii) A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part,
provides key management personnel services to the Company
or to a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd)
Impairment of assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet available
for use are reviewed annually for impairment and are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the
carrying amount may not be recoverable.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except receivables to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of any
impairment loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net
of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (cont'd) 4. EREFBR (@)

Provisions and contingent liabilities BERSIAREE

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount HAEBRERBEAEHA IR EENETE
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation arising - mEERETRAEFEZULENZ LS
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic B BeeER A Szt et RERER
benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate e ERARE - WEEKHEEBER
can be made. Where the time value of money is material, provisions are B BESNEEECEHMIEXHNIRE
stated at the present value of the expenditures expected to settle the G| BR o

obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be HEBRHLEMNZSH A RE A skkgen
required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is SEHEABESE BB IENH&ER 25 T e
disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is R SAIBREESIENABERE -
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed BRIEFRAZRTAREHRDELEASEETE
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events are BHEREAGTEES ENNgREANAGRE
also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is B IE 4% 378 | 25 7 H 9 B B MR i B VE B &R ©
remote.

Events after the reporting period HEHKEE

Events after the reporting period that provide additional information IREAREBRRER R E5RoN N EINER
about the Group's position at the end of the reporting period or those SENFERLCEREY MEENREEHEEE
that indicate the going concern assumption is not appropriate are BHEBRER WRB BRI A XM (5 IEFH
adjusting events and are reflected in the financial statements. Events BERENREHEEEBE A AR BRE
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in MsE IR EE -

the notes to the financial statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. EXHER EE M

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements that have the most significant effect on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

(a) Going concern basis
These financial statements have been prepared on a going concern
basis, the validity of which depends upon the Group being able to
achieve a successful restructuring and continue its business. Details
are explained in note 2 to the financial statements.

(b) Deconsolidation of subsidiaries
As mentioned in note 2, certain subsidiaries were excluded from
the consolidated financial statements from 1 January 2016. Based
on management assessment and with reference to the latest status
of each of the deconsolidated subsidiaries, the Company has lost
control over these entities during the year ended 31 December
2016.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

5. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(cont’'d)
Key sources of estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

(a) Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

The Group determines the estimated useful lives, residual values
and related depreciation charges for the Group's property, plant
and equipment. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment of similar nature and functions. The Group will revise
the depreciation charge where useful lives and residual values are
different to those previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-
down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been
abandoned or sold.

(b) Impairment of trade receivables, prepayments, deposits and

(c)

other receivables

The Group makes impairment loss on trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other receivables based on assessments
of the recoverability of the trade receivables, prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, including the current creditworthiness and
the past collection history of each debtor. Impairments arise where
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may
not be collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgments and estimates.

Current income tax

Judgment is required in determining the provision for taxation. There
are many transactions and calculation for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the original course of business.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
current income tax in the periods in which the differences arise.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units
based on their products and services and has three reportable operating
segments:

Car rental —  provision of car rental services

Resources trading —  trading of coking coal, aluminium rod and
fuel oil

Online platform — provision of online platform for the

trading and deferred spot delivery services
of precious metals

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure of adjusted
profit/(loss) before tax. The adjusted profit/(loss) before tax is measured
consistently with the Group's profit/(loss) before tax except that interest
and other income, finance costs, unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents and other unallocated
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude borrowings, tax payable and other unallocated
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, there were no
inter-segment sales.
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For the year ended

RS ERAR B AL

31 December 2018 #HZEZ=—Z— \F+=-A=+—HILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 6. REDTHER (w0
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and (@) TEHHILER - BENEBEHE R
liabilities are summarised as follow: wm
Online Resources
Car rental platform trading Total
RERE fLy¥a ERES @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET TET
Year ended BZ-E-N\F+-A=1+-H
31 December 2018 tEE
Revenue from external customers RSN P 2 Wizs 54,697 - - 54,697
Segment result PMEE 50,579 (1,709) (7,520) 41,350
Interest income on bank deposits 8177772 Fl B4 A 39
Other income HeA 15,580
Unallocated expenses APEERAX (21,863)
Profit from operations meah 35,106
Reversal of impairment losses — #1% W= k& ER
on property, plant and REEEEE
equipment 1,339
Finance cost BMERA (51,753)
Loss before tax BHATER (15,308)
Income tax expense FEHAX -
Loss for the year ERNEE (15,308)
Depreciation and amortisation 1 & & # $4 11,126 310 1,660 13,096
Capital expenditure BERRY 248 - - 248
As at 31 December 2018  R=F-\Ef+=-A=+-H
Segment assets ITHEE 205,093 4,438 84,053 293,584
Unallocated assets ADEEE 71,702
365,286
Segment liabilities il =N (321,156) (1,642) (74,549) (397,347)
Unallocated liabilities ADEEE (567,327)
(964,674)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd) 6. RETHER (w0
(a) (cont'd) (a) (&)
Online Resources
Car rental platform trading Total
AEHE Fr¥a BRES @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FEL FTREL TR
Year ended BE-Z-tE+-A=1+-H
31 December 2017 tEE
Revenue from external customers RSN RE P 2 Wiz 35,748 22,818 - 58,566
Segment result DMEE (16,130) (16,926) (38,395) (71,451)
Interest income on bank deposits 81777 7 2 Al B WA 158
Other income Hi ke A 3,798
Unallocated expenses APERAX (17,955)
Loss from operations meER (85,450)
Finance cost BEKK (52,790)
Fair value loss of derivative IR R TEBE
instruments (276)
Reversal of impairment losses ~ #1% - R MR B0
on property, plant and REBERE
equipment 1,842
Impairment losses on intangible & EE 2 MERKE
assets (497)
Loss before tax BREAIEE (137,171)
Income tax expense EERX -
Loss for the year FAFE (137,171)
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7& K # 8 8,817 454 1,661 10,932
Capital expenditure BARY 78,323 505 - 78,828
As at 31 December 2017 R-ZB-tF+=A=t+-H
Segment assets ITHEE 231,020 6,363 96,124 333,507
Unallocated assets ADEEE 28,312
361,819
Segment liabilities PHEE (346,546) (1,692) (74,549) (422,787
Unallocated liabilities APEAE (534,387)
(957,174)
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6. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (cont'd)
(b) Geographical information:
The Group’s revenue analysed by geographical location and
information about its non-current assets by geographical location

are detailed below:

6. &

EoEER (|

(b) HEEH :

AEE R R DM 2 s RiRinR e n 2
FRBEEZERFBOT

Revenue Non-current assets
€ ERBEE
Year ended 31 December As at 31 December
HE+-A=t-RALEE W+=-A=+-8

2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt F —E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TET TET FTET
PRC # 54,697 58,566 162,819 183,361
Mongolia e - - 5,672 5,994
54,697 58,566 168,491 189,355

In presenting the geographical information, revenue is based on the

locations of the customers.

(c) Information about major customers
Revenue from operations of HK$53,576,000 (2017: HK$22,591,000)
was derived from one customer (2017: one customer) in the car
rental segment which individually contributed 10% or more to the
Group's revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

7. REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are car rental.

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivable by the Group
from business income, the sales of goods and services rendered to
customers, net of discounts, returns and sales related taxes are as

follows:

(c)

7. K

252 E R - W T IRIR R P AT

&5 e

FEEFEH

¥ 7% U02%553,576,0008 7T (—ZF —+H4F ¢
22,591,000 70) JyR B /A EAE D I
W—REF(ZT—+tF: —REF) %
BEEEMEAEEBEE—T—N\FE_-T
—tF+ A=+ —HIEFEZRE10%
A Lo

3¢
m

AEBENETREB/IEHRE-

WHEAEBAEBRA REPHES M
RREIR (FNERITE RN REERENE) D
U B Ko FEYRHR RO 288 - a0

2018 2017

S —F—+t%

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTERT FHET

Car rental income ABEAERA 54,697 35,748
Online trading service fee income REBSRBEWA - 22,818
54,697 58,566

BEREAERIERERAR 79
2018 &



Notes to the Financial Statements

B ISR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T — \F+_A=+—HItFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Hfttx A
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FTERT FHET
Bank interest income HRITH WA 39 158
Net foreign exchange gain SNEE WS 2 FFE - 1,321
Gain on derecognition of other payables H e W RIE AR IERER 2 Wi 15,133 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiary HEMRE ARz e - 942
Sundry income B A 447 1,535
15,619 3,956
9. FINANCE COST 9. REMAE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Bank charges RITER 46 -

Interest expenses on borrowings BRzFERE
— interest on convertible bonds — AR ES 2 TR 33,631 32,612
— interest on non-convertible bonds — N E S 2 FI 8 5,815 6,566
— interest on finance lease —RMEREZNE 12,131 13,115
— interest on other borrowings —E A E Rz A 130 97
— interest on bank borrowings —IRITERZFE - 400
51,753 52,790
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10.INCOME TAX EXPENSE
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at the rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)
on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year.

11.

Notes to the Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

10.FR B
BERFSHOCRFARBBELZ G ER
BURFIABIE16.5% (ZF—+%F:16.5% ) &T

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax, the applicable
income tax rate of the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC is 25% (2017:

25%).

The reconciliation between the income tax and loss before tax multiplied

st
= o
o

RBHPECEMSTE  AEBLRHEZHKH
BRRZEBMSHER25% (ZF—£F:

25%) °

FR1STERRR T AT B B RIA T BRI G HE 2 HiR

by the Hong Kong profits tax rate is as follows: wmR
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—tF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Loss before tax MR A ES 1B (15,308) (137,171)
Tax at the domestic income tax rate of R PSR %E16.5%
16.5% (2017: 16.5%) ZE—+%F:16.5%)
AFREZBE (2,526) (22,633)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7/ Bl & @K B A a TN REIFE 2
operating in the PRC wa (3,160) 3,894
Expenses not deductible for tax TR HNH R X 6,311 6,268
Tax losses not recognised RIERBIAEE (625) 12,471
LOSS FOR THE YEAR MFAREE
The Group’s loss for the year is stated after charging the following: AEBENBBIISCNEG T &IE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZE—LtF
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Depreciation e 13,096 10,932
Auditor’s remuneration ZEEN B & 800 800
Minimum lease payments under MATEERBEEHOERMNZ
operating lease in respect of: SERERE:
- land and buildings — i REF 1,455 2,563
Staff costs (including Directors’ BINA(BIEESHMH) :
remuneration):
— salaries, bonuses and allowances — B - TEAT RO BE 1,445 4,046
— retirement benefits scheme —RIRTEFIE EI R
contributions 62 197
1,507 4,243
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12.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing
Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

1N.EEHE

BIRE ETARA FERRUEDIFE383(1)(a)
b)) (EOERRR (REEEMNRER) R

PIE2M BBz FANEEHEMT

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM S
2018
—E-N\F
Equity- Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and  share option scheme
Fees allowances expenses contributions Total
DRERER REEAN
e HeRER BREBRX TR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET TERT TERT TERT
Executive directors HITES
Ji Kaiping T 1,200 - - - 1,200
Guo Peiyuan BEE 800 - - - 800
Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
Mou Ling** BIpxx 274 - - - 274
An Jingwen ZHRX 67 - - - 67
Independent non-executive B FHTES
directors
Li Wen E'S 133 - - - 133
Qiu Ke a5 105 - - - 105
2,579 = - - 2,579
82 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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12.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cont’'d)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (cont'd)

Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

1N.EEME @
(a) EEM < (|)

2017
ikl 3
Equity- Retirement
settled benefit
Salaries and share option scheme
Fees allowances expenses contributions Total
NEZEE RIKTEF
ik FeREH FERTER STEIHAR wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TERT FTET THIT TR
Executive directors HTES
Ji Kaiping LET 410 - - - 410
Lo Ka Wai ERE 906 - - - 906
Feng Yongming K 652 - - - 652
Tian Songlin SRV 1,493 - - - 1,493
Non-executive directors ~ FHTEE
Mou Ling S5 275 - - - 275
Yang Liu HE 88 - - - 88
Independent non-executive BELFHTEES
directors
Zhou Zhan [ER - - - - -
Xu Tiantian BRR - - - - -
Zhou Guangguo B B - - - - -
Wang Qun a3 82 - - - 82
Zhang Tianmin RAR 77 - - - 77
Yang Zhi Shu opd 73 - - - 73
Lai Ho Man, Dickson BES 73 - - - 73
4,129 - - - 4,129

* Resigned or retired during the relevant year
**  Resigned after the end of the reporting year

* REBFEREIERME
o RMEFEEE HRBHE

*** Appointed and resigned or retired during the relevant year oo NERFERZTEARBERRAE
There was no arrangement under which a director waived or RBEEZTE-—N\FERZE—tF+=A
agreed to waive any remuneration in respect of the years ended 31 —t+t—HLEFE BEFNESHRELR

December 2018 and 2017.

EHEEMME 2 -
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12.

13.

14.

84

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (cont'd)

(b) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included 5 (2017: 5) directors whose emoluments are reflected in
the analysis presented above.

No emoluments had been paid by the Group to the Directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Basic loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the loss for the year attributable to owners of the
Company of approximately HK$14,673,000 (2017: HK$131,036,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 6,411,770,500
(2017: 6,411,770,500) in issue during the year.

Diluted earning per share

No diluted loss per share for the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017 is presented as the effects of all convertible bonds and options are
anti-dilutive for the years.

DIVIDENDS
The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in respect
of the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2018
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(b) IERESFMHES
ENAEBRARSEMESRIERA
(CZ—+45 BR)ESE EWLRBER
FRBHZ ST

AEETHEAESEK A LR HEESXNER
e FREFRENEREMBEAEERZ
RN X BB E o

1B.AQAHEEAELEREE

SREXER
RARBEAAEBEERERNEEIREAQA
WA AEMLFANEIEL14,673,0008 L (==
—+% 1 131,036,000/ L) R FRE EITER
i% 2 hn#E ¥ 9 816,411,770,5000% ( =& —+
% :6,411,770,5000% ) 5T & -
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15.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15%% > H%&%ﬁ{ﬁ
Furniture,
fixtures and Motor
Leasehold office Computer vehicle
Yacht improvements equipment equipment and trucks Total
B -HER
HE  HEENEES BAERRE ERRE AREREE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL T FHL T T FHL
Cost: B
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+5—-A—R 13,647 2,598 1,845 385 199,945 218,420
Additions NE - - 8 - 78,323 78,331
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RIHBAR - (1,158) (127) - - (1,285)
Written off 3 - - - - (38,784) (38,784)
Disposal e (13,647) (1,267) (345) (385) (6,436) (22,080)
Exchange differences ERZSR - 6 43 - 6,110 6,159
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+ZA=+-Hk
1 January 2018 R-E-N\E-A—H - 179 1,424 - 239,158 240,761
Additions NE - - - - 248 248
Exchange differences ERZE - (9) (76) - (10,425) (10,510)
At 31 December 2018 R-B-\§+-A=1+-H - 170 1,348 - 228,981 230,499
Accumulated depreciation: REHE:
At 1 January 2017 RZE—+F—-A—R 4,309 1,702 665 166 46,237 53,079
Charge for the year FRZH - 12 323 - 10,597 10,932
Reversal of impairment loss REBERE - - - - (1,842) (1,842)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FNBAF - (289) (12) - - (301)
Written off 2 - - - - (1,774) (1,774)
Disposal e (4,309) (1,253) (184) (166) (3,191) (9,103)
Exchange differences EXESR - 7 27 - 381 415
At 31 December 2017 and i tF+-A=+-8k
1 January 2018 RZZ-N\F-A—H - 179 819 - 50,408 51,406
Charge for the year FRER - - 310 - 12,786 13,096
Reversal of impairment loss REBRRR - - - - (1,339) (1,339)
Exchange differences ERZR - 9) (58) - (1,088) (1,155)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZE-NE+=A=t+-H - 170 1,071 - 60,767 62,008
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2018 RZB-NF+ZA=Z+-8H - - 277 - 168,214 168,491
At 31 December 2017 WZE—tF+ZA=1+—8 - - 605 - 188,750 189,355

At 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of

motor vehicle held by

the Group under finance leases amounted to HK$109,122,000 (2017:

HK$122,767,000).

RZBE-NFE+-A=+—B "EERFE
HEETHAEREZEREMEA109,122,000%
T (=—Z—+%:122,767,0008 L) °
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16.SUBSIDIARIES 16.K & 1 A8
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2018 are as follows: MEBATIR-_ZE—N\E+_A=+—HZ2Z=H15
R
Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
SMRL ERR Eﬁﬁ/ .
£ EENY HEAEAEE AARGERADL FTEER
2018 2017
—B-N\f —EtF
Direct subsidiaries:
EENEAR:
Konmate Investments Ltd Hong Kong HK$2 100% 100% Investment holding
EEREBBRAA BR BT REER
Trade Rainbow Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
NEERRA BE BT HEEHG
Billions Achieve Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
fEARAR Bk 1T TEXH
Asia Construction Enterprise Limited British Virgin Islands US$50,000 100% 100% Inactive
("BVI")
DHERCEERA RERTES 50,000% 7T R
((RBEERES])
Delight Genius Limited Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100% Inactive
BRERDA BE BT s
NUR Industry Company Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
BRBAEREEXERAT EBRAES 1% EEXH
NUR Financial Holdings Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100%  Inactive
AXEEEREMERERAF RERUES 1% EEEH
NUR New Energy Management BVI Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
Company Limited " . B )
l%%ééfﬁ LREEBRAT RERZES E3 REER
Indirect subsidiaries:
BENEAR:
GMG Media Group Limited BVI US$1 100% 100% Investment holding and
provision of consulting
3 services
EBRAHE (E REERRREERRS
Ideal Honour Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RRERAA EE 1T REER
NUR Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
RBAEREEBRAF BE BT TEXH
Placid Expression Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Investment holding
RERRES 1% RERR
First Concept Industrial Group Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Trading and logistics services
BREREEERAR BE BT ECYL it
De rlgy Investments Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
BERERARA RERUES (E TEER
86 National United Resources Holdings Limited
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16.SUBSIDIARIES (cont’d)
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16./ B 2~ 7 (@)

Place of Nominal
incorporation/ value of
registration issued/paid Percentage of equity Principal
Name and operation up capital  attributable to the Company activities
ERAT ERR CES B
28 EELE EAEAEE AARLEEEAL TEEH
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
Million Best International Enterprise Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Management services
EERRAEERAR Bk BT el
NUR Clean Energy Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Inactive
BRBAERFRERREERAR BE 1% LEEH
NUR Industry (Hong Kong) Company Limited  Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100% Inactive
BZHEER (F8)ERARA Bk 18T EEE3
Amazing Idea Global Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
PERRERRA EBRAHE E3 EEXH
NUR Internet Investment Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
BXHAEREMEREERAR RERUES E3 TEXH
Glorious Future Logistics Limited BVI Us$100 100% 100% Inactive
BEMRARAA RERUES 100% 7T BEXE
iFrontier LLC Mongolia US$100,000 95% 95% Provision of transportation
services
ES] 100,000% 7T REEHRYS
NUR Investments Company Limited BVI Us$1 100% 100% Inactive
AXHEERREBRLA RERUES EH TEEH
Million Fortune International BVI US$10,000 70% 70% Investment holding
__Investment Limited B )
REARRAFRAA EERAHEE 10,000% 7T REZR
Most Billion Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 70% 70% Investment holding
BRKBERAA Bk BT RERR
Well Link Logistics co., Ltd. Macau MOP$100,000 70% 70% Investment holding
ERMRERAT R 100,000 7T RAER
FEEEREEAABRAR PRC HK$500,000 70% 70%  Investment holding
0 500,000/ 7T RERR
THEEARIZTL(ES) PRC RMB10,000,000 63% 63%  Operate platform
BBRAR HE AR BEYR
10,000,0007T
Gear World Development Limited BVI US$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
RERANE 10,000% T RERR
Gold Vantage Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100% Investment holding
SHERBRAA BB VBT RERR
LREBEFREERERAT PRC HK$4,000,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
i 4,000,000 7 R &R
IRRERMAERERRAA) PRC RMB158,000,000 100% 100%  Car rental
i i REL L
158,000,0007C
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16.SUBSIDIARIES (cont'd)
The following table shows information of subsidiaries that have non-
controlling interests (“NCI”) material to the Group. The summarised
financial information represents amounts before inter-company

16.M{ B 2 8 (@)
TR FIRA & B A JE R AR 25 ([ IR AR IE
D THBARZER - MEEREBIEAF
PR £5E -

eliminations.
Name %8 5582
2018 2017
& —T—tf
Principal place of business/country of FEEEMY AMRTER PRC PRC
incorporation H H
% of ownership interests/voting rights JEVER R T B R
held by NCI BEFEED I 37%/37% 37%/37%
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET
At 31 December: R+=—A=+—8:
Non-current assets FERBEAE 317 649
Current assets MENE E 4,121 5,714
Current liabilities mEN B & (4,553) (4,795)
Non-current liabilities FnBAR - -
Net assets BEEFE (115) 1,568
Accumulated NCI REtFE R ER (43) 580
Year ended 31 December: BE+t-A=+—-HLEE:
Revenue I 7 - 22,818
Loss &5 18 (1,672) (16,606)
Total comprehensive loss HEtzmEE (1,683) (16,667)
Loss allocated to NCI DEEIFERER ZER (619) (6,144)
Dividends paid to NCI BRI R 2 R R - -
Net cash used in operating activities KETBMAZR®FE (1,351) (6,455)
Net cash generated from investing activities & & &S 2R & F 5 - -
Net cash generated from financing activities B E EEFTE 2R & F5 - -
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents R&NMERIIESEE 2B FHE (1,351) (6,455)
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17.TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit or
received in advance. The credit period is generally 30 days. The Group
seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables so as
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
the Directors. The Group has concentration of credit risk on certain
customers. As at 31 December 2018, two (31 December 2017: one)
customers attributable to the Group’s total trade receivables were 81%
(31 December 2017: 78%). The Group does not hold any collateral
or other credit enhancement over its trade receivable balances. Trade
receivables are non-interest bearing.

The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

17.BRE 5 FKE

AEBERTP 2ESHERERNRRKTEH
HET EEH KRB0 - REEHANEE
THIAREREBUFREAZEREEER R -
EEHRTBHARN AR ARENEERR
EFRETEP RZE-—NFE+ZA=+—
B ME(ZE—tF+-A=+—H0:—%)
BEPEMLAEEREE S REFE281% (ZF
—tF+ZRA=1+—H:78%) - AEE I &
SEEYWE 5T ERIT A AR RAELE
fEERERE - BRESRIL TS -

EWE S TIREZ AR ZREDITAT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAT

Within 30 days =+HA 559 438
Over 1 year HBim—F 770 770
Less: Impairments R E (770) (770)
559 438

The Group applies the simplified approach under FRS 9 to provide for
expected credit losses using the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the
days past due. The expected credit losses also incorporate forward
looking information.

AEEERERSEHRELENEISRIE TG
EERBERMEEBRAERE HMEES
FEMRIBIR A 2 TR M B IR R - RETEAY
FEBER BZRUGKACREAREERR
FEMaPRE S E BREERBETEER
EIEER -

Over 1 year
et
Current Past due Total
=] BE-F Fob
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TEL FEL
At 31 December 2018 R-E-N§+=ZA=1+-H
Weighted average expected loss rate METHEREEE 0% 100%
Receivable amount (HK$) FEM IR (B ) 559 770 1,329
Loss allowance (HK$) BEEE (BT - 770 770
At 31 December 2017 R-Z-t&+=-A=+-H
Weighted average expected loss rate METHERERE 0% 100%
Receivable amount (HK$) e zRE (BT) 438 770 1,208
Loss allowance (HK$) EERE (BT) - 770 770
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18.PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

18.FENARE ZREREMEKRRE

RECEIVABLES

2018 2017

—ZT-N\F —T—tF

HK$000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Amount due from an associate JiE Uy — T B 4 R B FROE (a) 70,302 26,913

Other receivables H b E Uk FE 7,100 4,913
Guarantee deposit for ENmMmERERBEZRES

finance lease payables 32,709 34,566

Paid in advance SEENE ] 204,334 216,083

Prepayments and deposits FEfRIE R AR & 7,055 9,354

321,500 291,829

Impairment A (126,383) (126,383)

195,117 165,446

(a) The amounts due from an associate is unsecured, interest-free and has no
fixed repayment terms.

19.BANK AND CASH BALANCES
As at 31 December 2018, the bank and cash balances of the Group
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB") approximately to HK$125,000 (2017:
HK$5,583,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to
the PRC's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no
recent history of default.

20.TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is as

(@) MW FHBERRAFAREER 28 &Y E

19.BTRESEF
RZE-—NF+Z_A=Z+—H xEEMKN
ARB(TAREDFEZRITIERACERF
#%125,000%8 7t (=& — 4+ % : 5,583,000/%
) ANRBEHBAEMERKAZRREINEE
HERR TR ©

RITR T IIREE HIRITHERN R ZF A=
REVFLR - RITEF D F N RA I B E DR
BAGERFZRIT

20. BV E 5 KA
BEEEABZENEIRERINOT

follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
Over 1 year HBiE—F 38,590 38,605
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21.0THER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 1.BEMERSERESER
2018 2017
N5 B -
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other payables E b fE TR 188,866 205,764
Receipt in advance B R IE 35,215 35,215
Accruals EstE A 13,714 7,220
237,795 248,199
22.BORROWINGS 228 &
2018 2017
o e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Other loans HinBE®R 159,035 167,240
All borrowings are repayable on demand or within one year. FBEEAERERK—FARNEER-
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23.CONVERTIBLE BONDS 23. 7 RES

On 27 October 2015, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$65,735,900 which bear interest rate of 4.5% per
annum. (the "2015CB"). The 2015CB are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company within 24 months from the date of issue at a conversion
price of HK$0.265 per conversion share (subject to adjustment), and
a maximum of 248,060,000 conversion shares can be issued. At 31
December 2018, the outstanding principal amount are HK$26,500,000.

On 10 November 2015, the Company issued a zero-coupon convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$120,000,000 (the “QDCB1") as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of 70% equity interest
in the entire issued share capital of Million Fortune International
Investment Limited. The QDCB1 are convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date at a conversion price of HK$0.40 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment), and a maximum of 300,000,000 conversion shares can
be issued. All the QDCB1 will be redeemed by the Company at par on
9 November 2018. At 31 December 2018, the outstanding principal
amount are HK$55,580,000.

On 31 August 2016, the Company issued a convertible bonds in the
principal amount of HK$140,000,000 (the “TMCB1") which bear interest
rate of 3% per annum as part of the consideration for the acquisition
of 100% equity interest in the entire issued share capital of Gear World
Development Limited. The TMCB1 are convertible into ordinary shares
of the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date at a conversion price of HK$0.30 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment), and a maximum of 466,666,666 conversion shares can be
issued. At 31 December 2018, the outstanding principal amount are
HK$140,000,000.

On 31 March 2017, the Company issued a zero-coupon convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$13,220,218 (the “"QDCB2") as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of 70% equity interest
in the entire issued share capital of Million Fortune International
Investment Limited. The QDCB2 are convertible into ordinary shares of
the Company at any time between the date of issue and its maturity
date at a conversion price of HK$0.40 per conversion share (subject to
adjustment), and a maximum of 33,050,045 conversion shares can be
issued. All the QDCB2 will be redeemed by the Company at par on 30
March 2020. At 31 December 2018, the outstanding principal amount
are HK$13,220,018.
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FRAS%E ([ZZ2—RFAJHBRRES]) °
—E-RAFARRESFTIRESFATREITA
Rt mEANERARQ A L@
HINE AT RE R %H0.2655 L (7] T
) - £x % 0] 3 17248,060,000% & % 15 o
2 \F+ZA=+—H KEELSEA
26,500,000 T ©

RZZ—AF+—A+TH ARBIETALE
#3120,000,0008 T2 TE S A MRES ([F
SMBRES—]) FAKBERERRRES
RARZIMEEHITRAZ70%M#E 75D R
B-E5MBRRESF —TRETEEAHES
H A R R A E R AR R R LB - iR
BASREHRRMD0AET (A FHAR) - &%
A] #17300,000,0000% #& #2 i 15 - A A B8] # 7R
2 )\ Ft+—ANARAEELMES SR
BEREsE— R_E—-N\F+-_A=+—8"
K 18iE AN £ %8 A55,580,000/8 7T °

RZBE—XNENAZ+—HB AQBETAS
# /3140,000,000/ T 2 A MR & % - H IR
ME3I%TE ([RERATRARESR—]) 1
AU B Gear World Development Limited % 3f
BBITIRAZ100%BENIDRE - REE
ShAl MR ES — AR BT EIE A B E E B A A
MERRBEERAERAARLTER EHRELAS
AREEIRARH0.3078 7T (AT FHRE) - RZAH#IT
466,666,666 BIRRMD - R T — \F+=
A=+—H KREEXRS% A140,000,000/#
5o

RZZE—tHE=ZA=Z+—A AQFRBITAE
S EA13,2202188 L2 T EE AR ES
([E8BRES=])  FRKERERERIE
BERAFIZEEEHITRA Z70%RER B 5
RE - FEUHBRRESF -AIRBTEHEANE
| EA A ERE AR IR AR A R L AR - 8
BEASREBRRKRMD0.40BT (A FRAR) - &
% A #1733,050,045 0% IR 1) c AR AR
R CEF - R+ HARAEELAES SR
BRES - -R_E—-N\F+_A=+—8"
KEEAN$%4A13,220,0188 7T °



23.

24,

Notes to the Financial Statements

RS ERAR B AL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE =T —\F+_A=+—HItFE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS (cont'd) 23. TR EF (a0
The liability component of convertible bonds recognised at the end of the NREBARE R 2 BIREEZBEISS D
reporting period is analysed as follows: T
2015CB QDCB1 QDCB2 TMCB1 Total
—E-EHF EEWER EEWRRKR AEBEE
ARRES BF— BHE= TWHERESF— st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
Liability component SERS
At 1 January 2017 RZZ—t5—H—H 24,652 38,828 - 94,488 157,968
At date of issue RETEE - - 8,340 - 8,340
Interest charged FBRX 4,449 8,042 1,029 19,092 32,612
At 31 December 2017 and ~ RAZZ—+4
1 January 2018 +ZA=+—-HBRK
—Z2-\¥—H—H 29,101 46,870 9,369 113,580 198,920
Interest charged FEHAX 1,192 8,711 1,548 22,180 33,631
Liability component at RZZ—N\F+
31 December 2018 ZA=+—HZ
BERD 30,293 55,581 10,917 135,760 232,551
Portion classified as current D AREBAENHH
liabilities (30,293) (55,581) (10,917) (135,760) (232,551)
Non-current portion FERBHD - - - - -
The interest charged for the year of 2015CB, QDCB1, QDCB2 and R_E—RFAERESF SEAERKE
TMCB1 are calculated by applying an effective interest rate of 19.16%, H— FEBMKRESF-RAXEEREATBKRE

19.74%, 15.9% and 19.76% to the liability component respectively.

NON-CONVERTIBLE BONDS

The Bonds are redeemable at the discretion of the Company at 100% of
the principal amount of such Bonds together with payment of interests
accrued up to date of such early redemption by serving at least ten
calendar days written notice at any time before the maturity date. The
Bonds will be redeemed on the date immediately following twelve to
twenty-four months after the first date of issue of the Bonds. The Bonds
carry interest at a rate of 6% per annum, which is payable annually in
arrears.

HF—Z2FRNFNERZTIRBERD 5 HIHA
19.16% * 19.74% * 15.9% 5% 19.76 % K E X F|
2. R A AR EH

BEHFABEAREWER R B [ E [ R EX
EsL+EEAzEmBEAN BRBBESFZ
100% A ¢ EEREEIRFEED ARG ZF
B -BHEENEREEFEITERERTZ
EZFNEAERAEE- EHIEFFEE%
PR WASFERZT-

2018 2017

—E-N\F i

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FHET

At 1 January m—A—H 90,352 100,855

Repayment BN - (11,000)

Interest charged FEBHAX 5,815 6,566

Interest payable classify SRR R E A R FRIE R

to other payables FET RIS (5,667) (6,069)

At 31 December R+=ZA=+—8H 90,500 90,352
BREE S ERIZERER A A 93
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25.FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 5. BRI EHERE
The Group leases certain of its motor vehicles. These leases are classified AEBHERTAE -ZSHE S EARMEA
as finance leases and have remaining lease terms of 3 years (2016: 4 EEHTHEAIFE (ZZE—RF 45F) - &
years). The effective borrowing rates were ranging from 6.4% to 7.3% R BEBREFENT64%FET7.3% (ZFE—7X
(2016: 6.4% to 7.3%) per annum. The leases are on a fixed repayment F:6.4%%FE73%) MENETERSEER
basis and no arrangements have been entered into for contingent rental TWESRS AN RS L HE-
payment.

Present value of

Minimum lease payments minimum lease payments
BEHESEIR EEHEENRRE
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\f& —E—tF —E-N\F —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET TERT FET
Within one year —FR 93,875 64,159 97,929 53,284
In the second year EF 50,424 54,753 45,864 46,815
In the third to fifth years, inclusive £=FZFHF
(BEERME) 68,475 125,648 39,759 90,483
212,774 244,560 183,552 190,582
Future finance charges AKEE X H (29,222) (53,978) N/ATEHA N/ATE
Present value of lease obligations FE&FT 2 HE 183,552 190,582 183,552 190,582
Less: Amount due for woR1I2BRNEEZ
settlement within ERFE (FIA
12 months (shown mEAEE)
under current liabilities) (97,929) (53,284)
Non-current portion FEREBE S 85,623 137,298
26.SHARE CAPITAL 26. 18 7
2018 2017
—E-N\F T —+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FHET
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
6,411,770,500 (2017: 6,411,770,500) 6,411,770,5000%
ordinary shares (ZZ—+%:6,411,770,5000% )
EREL 3,178,754 3,178,754
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27.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
a) Statement of financial position of the Company

27. KRRl 2 BRI R R AE
a) AATZEBHBHRRE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Current assets REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TER IR - 1R & R H Ath B Y FRIB
other receivables 1,826 185
Cash and bank balances Re MiRITHER - -
1,826 185
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals HthEN KB RESER 26,885 18,263
Other borrowings HihEE 12,500 12,500
Convertible bonds AR E S 232,551 198,920
Non-convertible bonds AR E 90,500 90,352
362,436 320,035
Net current liabilities RBEETFE (360,610) (319,850)
Total assets less current HEERABER
liabilities (360,610) (319,850)
Non-current liabilities EREBEE
Convertible bonds R EH - -
NET LIABILITIES E8EFE (360,610) (319,850)
Capital and reserves BAREE
Share capital fi& 7 3,178,754 3,178,754
Reserves L (3,539,364) (3,498,604)
TOTAL EQUITY wiES (360,610) (319,850)
Approved by: KE S
Ji Kaiping Guo Peiyuan
LHET BT R
Director Director
EF EF
BEREAERIERERAR 95
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27.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (cont'd)
b) Reserves of the Company

27. KRRl 2 BRI R R AEE (@)
b) XARZHEE

Equity
Share-based component of
payment convertible Accumulated
reserve bonds losses Total
UR#7 A TERESZ
BERARzHE ERH ZitER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET THT TEL FHET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZE—+F—F—H 34,311 60,141 (3,557,570) (3,463,118)
Total comprehensive loss FRE2EEERLESE
for the year - - (37,422) (37,422)
Equity component of HRRES ERTH
convertible bonds - 1,936 - 1,936
Lapsed of share options ERREX M (20,283) - 20,283 -
At 31 December 2017 and RZE—tF+ZA=1—H
at 1 January 2018 KR-Z-NF—A—H 14,028 62,077 (3,574,709) (3,498,604)
Total comprehensive loss FRNE2EERLEH
for the year - - (40,760) (40,760)
Lapsed of share options fERE R (14,028) - 14,028 -
At 31 December 2018 RZE-\F+ZA=1+—A - 62,077 (3,601,441) (3,539,364)

¢) Nature and purpose of reserves of the Group
(i) Share-based payment reserve
The share-based payment reserve represents the fair value of
the actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to the eligible participants recognised in accordance
with the accounting policy adopted for equity-settled share-
based payments in note 4 to the financial statements.

(ii) Equity component of convertible bonds
The equity component of convertible bonds represents the
value of the unexercised equity component of convertible bonds
issued by the Company recognised in accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for convertible bonds in note 4 to
the financial statements.

(iii) Foreign currency translation reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policies set out in note 4 to the
financial statements.
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28.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Share option scheme adopted in 2002

On 25 July 2002, a share option scheme was adopted by the Company
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) pursuant to which the Board may
grant options to any employees, directors, shareholders, suppliers,
customers of the Group and any other person or company who has
contributed or may contribute to the development and growth of the
Group to subscribe for shares in the Company at any price which is at
least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company on
the date of the grant of the options; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the grant of the options; and (iii) the
nominal value of the shares of the Company.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of
the shares in issue as at the adoption date of the 2002 Share Option
Scheme or the date of approval by the shareholders in general meeting
where the limit is refreshed. The total number of shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each eligible person
under the 2002 Share Option Scheme in any twelve months period must
not exceed 1% of the shares in issue at the date of such grant unless
approved by the shareholders in general meeting.

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:

28. B ESTE

R-ZZ-FRAZERETS
RZZBZE_FLA-+HR ARARMB—E
BREGE (2T - FBREE]) &
h’%%@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁé B R
HER TPREMGEH Y AEEZ H
E&%EW&?%ZE@AiX BIEdski i
R ARERBEEREAR ﬂﬂﬁfﬁ”\‘ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&
AEERATHRSE: (WNREEREE R
"Tﬂxﬂﬁﬂwﬁszﬁ (ii) Fi*%&&u”jﬁ%ﬂxf”‘“
TE% 5 B AR R 5 2 F 2 Fig U

ﬁ% s R (i) A X B A TEE @

RIE—TT _FRERE ST ROBRES R
ZEhESHE TEBRB-TT _FBKE
AEIERME A RIRRA G AR EE R
BRREE S BTRM10%  BREBRRAER
%ﬁ@m&W'XAEWAiFEH+ 1@ A
HRTERE ST _FERETSIERZE
MBI BEETZ RN ES TSEG
RHERZEHETRMI% -

BREREEMNZFENT

Adjusted
Date of grant Exercise period Exercise price
RHEBH T RARITEE
HK$
7T
Directors 29 November 2007 29 November 2007- 2.5536
28 November 2017
BE —ETEF+—HAZ+ThH ZEEALE+-AZ+NARZE
—E—+F+—A=+N\H
Employees 29 November 2007 29 November 2007- 2.5536
28 November 2017
B8 —TELF+—A=+NA ZETEEFF+—AZ+NARZE
—tF+—A=Z+N\AH
Business associates 29 November 2007 29 November 2007- 2.5536
28 November 2017
ECY YN —EELF+—AZTAhA ZEELF+—-AZtNAAZE
—T—+E+—-AZ+N\H
Business associates 27 June 2008 27 June 2008- 2.5536

EBBEA

—EENEFEAA=++tH

26 June 2018
—EENEFERNAZtTEHE
- N\FERNAZFH

The 2002 Share Option Scheme was expired in July 2012 after the
scheme period of the tenth anniversary of the adoption date and no
further share options can be granted under the 2002 Share Option
Scheme.

—RE_FHEREIERA AT RE 2
FMEERN _T——FLtARRNEBIARE
TR _FREER R B
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28.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont’'d)
Share option scheme adopted in 2002 (cont’d)

28. B RSB (m)

REZZ-FRAZERESS (2)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
mES R i =k
FHITEE BREHE FHTHE BREHAR
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January n—H—H 2.5536 7,761,905 2.5536 17,476,072
Lapsed during the year FRKR 2.5536 (7,761,905) 2.5536 (9,714,167)
At 31 December BR+ZA=+—H 2.5536 - 2.5536 7,761,905

Share option scheme adopted in 2012

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 14 December 2012, a share option
scheme of the Company (the “2012 Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted by the Company.

In accordance with the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the Board may
grant options to any eligible participants who has contributed or may
contribute to the development and growth of the Group or any entity
in which the Group hold an equity interest to subscribe for shares in
the Company at any price which shall be not less than the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange
as shown in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date on which an offer for the grant of the options; (ii) the average
of the closing prices of the shares of the Company as shown in the
daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date on which an offer for the grant of the
options; and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on the
date on which an offer for the grant of the options.

The maximum number of Shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the 2012 Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at its adoption date or the date of approval
by the Shareholders in general meeting where the limit is refreshed. At
the 2015 AGM, an ordinary resolution approving the refreshment of the
scheme limit and authorizing the Directors to grant share options under
the 2012 Share Option Scheme up to the refreshed limit was passed.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each eligible person under the 2012 Share Option
Scheme in any twelve months period must not exceed 1% of the shares
in issue at the date of such grant unless approved by the shareholders
in general meeting. The amount payable on acceptance of the option is
HK$10.
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28.SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (cont'd)
Share option scheme adopted in 2012 (cont’d)

Details of the specific categories of options are as follows:
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28. 58 IR AE ST & (@)
R-CE-——FEEMZBERETS (&)
BRI TER BT

Adjusted
Date of grant Exercise period exercise price
REBH TR REBTEE
HK$
BT
Directors 3 September 2014 3 September 2014- 0.2274
2 September 2019
B=x —E-MFEAA=R “E-MFAR=RE
—“E-AFAAZH
Employees 3 September 2014 3 September 2014- 0.2274
2 September 2019
(= —E-MFEAA=R “E-MFAR=RE
—“E-AFAAZH
Business associates 3 September 2014 3 September 2014- 0.2274
2 September 2019
EBHEA —ZET-WFEARAZ=AR “E-MFAR=RE
—“E-AFAAZH
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise price Number of exercise price Number of
per share options per share options
mES R MESR
FHITEE BREHE FHTEE B A
HK$ HK$ '000
BT BT Fk
At 1 January ®R—A—A - - 0.2274 143,928,763
Lapsed during the year FRITE - - 0.2274 (143,928,763)
At 31 December R+=ZA=+—H - - - -

BRBAERERERAT
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100

29.NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

29. G EHEREBRMEE

CASH FLOWS
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities REITDELENEEET
The following table shows the Group’s changes in liabilities arising from TREBINAEFBENRETSHESLNABES
financing activities during the year: & :
Total
liabilities
Non- Finance from
Convertible convertible lease financing
Borrowings bonds bonds payables activities
EmEEE
EARE £
BE TRKRES TUTERRES HENE BBEeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—t&—HF—H 217,455 157,968 100,855 217,389 693,667
Changes in cash flows HenEzgy (50,712) - (11,000) (39,921) (101,633)
Non-cash changes FRezE
—issue —B17 - 8,340 - - 8,340
— interest charged —FERX 497 32,612 6,566 13,115 52,790
— interest payable classify — DA MERRIEN
to other payables EANEUESS - - (6,069) - (6,069)
- exchange difference -ERER - - - (1 (1
At 31 December 2017 and R ZZT—+tF+=A
1 January 2018 —t—HERZZ-N\F
—A—H 167,240 198,920 90,352 190,582 647,094
Changes in cash flows Rengv# - - - (18,012) (18,012)
Non-cash changes FReE
— interest charged —FERAX 130 33,631 5,815 12,131 51,707
~ interest payable classify — DA MENFIEN
to other payables JERTFI B - - (5,667) 32,513 26,846
- exchange difference —EHER (8,335) - - (33,662) (41,997)
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+=A
=+—H 159,035 232,551 90,500 183,552 665,638
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30.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 30.AREE

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for REEER - R RER A M AR HRBHE 2 S A

in the financial statements were as follows: aEmT:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —+tF
HK$000 HK$'000
THET FET

Indemnity related to a former subsidiary BRI E AR B2

(note 31(b)) (BI=E31(b)) 6,920 7,313
At the end of the reporting period, the Directors do not consider it RBERR EERR NEEBTATREAR L

31.

probable that a claim will be made against the Group under the above

possible claim.

PENDING LITIGATIONS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following pending
litigations:

(a)

In September 2004, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
by an individual third party demanding immediate repayment of
borrowings of approximately HK$1,600,000 together with the
interest thereon. As the Company had never borrowed money from
that individual third party, the Directors were of the opinion that
the Company had no obligation to pay the demanded amount. In
January 2005, an amended Writ of Summons was served on the
Company by the lender of the Group to clarify that the individual
third party acted as an agent of the lender. The Directors instructed
the lawyer of the Company to handle this matter. The loan advanced
by the lender of HK$1,523,000 together with interest and penalty
of HK$1,149,000, totaling of approximately HK$2,672,000, were
accrued in the financial statements (included in other borrowings
and other payables and accruals respectively) and has not yet been
settled as at 31 December 2018.

The Court has granted an order to adjourn sine die the plaintiffs’
application to set down this case on 15 March 2006. That is to say,
the lender and its agent have temporarily withheld the proceedings
against the Company. This claim has not been settled up to the date
of approval of these financial statements.
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31.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(b)

102

According to an agreement entered into by the Company, two of
its subsidiaries and two independent third parties in February 2003,
the Group disposed of a subsidiary, World Giant Limited (“World
Giant"”), a company engaged in property investment in the PRC. In
this connection, the Company has undertaken to indemnify World
Giant for, among others, any increase in the liabilities of World Giant
as a result of any claim for taxation arising from any transactions
effected on or before the completion date of the disposal. In
October 2004, World Giant received a payment request from the
PRC tax authority in respect of PRC property taxes relating to the
property held by World Giant, including the late payment surcharge
levied by the tax authority, of which approximately an amount of
RMB6,100,000 related to transactions on or before the completion
date. The existing management of World Giant had indicated to the
Directors that the amount in respect of transactions on or before the
completion date should be paid by the Company.

In February 2005, a Writ of Summons was served on the Company
demanding the payment of approximately RMB6,100,000. However,
such amounts were covered by the amount accrued in the financial
statements of World Giant at the time of disposal.

Accordingly, in the opinion of the Directors and having obtained an
opinion from the Company’s lawyer, the Group has no obligation to
pay the above taxes. Because of the uncertainty of the outcome of
this matter, the amount involved of approximately RMB6,100,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$6,920,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$7,313,000), has been shown as contingent liabilities in note 30
to the financial statements.

The Writ of Summons was served on the Company in February
2005. The Company has not received further claims from the
plaintiff up to the date of approval of these financial statements.
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31.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(0

In 2014, five customers of AVIC Guojin have taken civil actions
against AVIC Guojin in the court in Qingdao claiming the contracts
of trading precious metals on the platform of AVIC Guojin being
invalid and recovery of the related losses totalling approximately
RMB11,000,000, equivalent to approximately HK$13,131,000. In
April 2015, the court in Qingdao handed down the judgment in
favour of AVIC Guojin in one of the five cases and the successors of
the deceased plaintiff in that case appealed against the judgment in
May 2015. The court suspended the proceedings of the other four
civil actions pending the results of the first case.

In May 2015, two customers of AVIC Guojin have taken civil actions
against AVIC Guojin, Qingdao Xinshiyuan Precious Metal Limited (&
EBttRESEAMR AR, and Qingdao Chengyang Sub-branch of
China Construction Bank Corporation (FR B2 & BITRMHBREA
FEWI5¥7T) in court in Qingdao claiming the contracts of tradlng
precious metals on the platform of AVIC Guojin being invalid and
recovery of the related losses totalling approximately RMB1,600,000,
equivalent to approximately HK$1,910,000. The hearing of the case
is still in progress and the court has not handed down the judgment
as at the date of this announcement.

Having considered the foregoing judgment in April 2015 by the
court in favour of the AVIC Guojin and taken the legal advice, the
existing management of AVIC Guojin had indicated to the Directors
that it is not probable that material loss will be suffered by AVIC
Guojin. Therefore, no provision has been made for the above claims.
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31.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

(d)

104

On 24 June 2015, First Concept served a notice of arbitration (the
“Notice”) on SGS, being a wholly owned subsidiary of SouthGobi
Resources Ltd. In the Notice, First Concept sought the Advanced
Payment from SGS, according to a coal supply agreement dated
19 May 2014 between First Concept and SGS, representing the
prepayment amount advanced by First Concept for the supply of
coking coal by SGS to First Concept under such agreement. The
arbitral proceedings are deemed to have commenced on 24 June
2015, as the date when the respondent received the Notice. As at
the date of this report, the arbitral proceedings are in progress.

First Concept paid in advance to SGS for purchasing coals from SGS.
However, SGS supplied and First Concept collected zero tonne of
coal in the contracted period. As such, SGS refused to repay the
Advanced Payment to First Concept. It is justified for First Concept
to recover the Advanced Payment from SGS by legal action, and First
Concept proceeded accordingly as mentioned above.

SGS has been ordered to pay the sum of US$11.5 million (which
SGS had received as a prepayment for the purchase of coal) to First
Concept pursuant to an arbitration award dated 4 January 2018
("Partial Award”).

First Concept and SGS entered into a deed of settlement on 16
November 2018 (“Settlement Deed”), pursuant to which First
Concept has agreed to accept the sum of US$14,282,070 as full
and final satisfaction of the sums payable according to the Partial
Award. Under the Settlement Deed, SGS shall pay the sum of
US$14,282,070 to First Concept in 12 monthly instalments with the
last instalment payable on or before 30 September 2019.

On 15 January 2016, b R Z EH S E) A FFZ M EPT (the Labour
Dispute Arbitration Committee of Miyun County, Beijing City*) ruled
that TMTC shall pay a compensation amount of RMB560,727 to
the applicants in respect of an employee’ s death caused during the
course of the employment and TMTC shall also pay the applicants an
dependant pension on a monthly basis. TMTC has made an appeal
against the arbitration decision to the People’s Court of Miyun
County, Beijing City which was rejected on 27 June 2016. TMTC had
settled the compensation amount on 13 October 2016.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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31.PENDING LITIGATIONS (cont’d)

)

On 31 January 2019, the Company, First Concept Industrial Group
Limited (“First Concept”) and NUR Clean Energy Investment
Limited (“NUR Clean”) (wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company)
issued a writ of summons in the High Court of the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region against 9 defendants for (i) breach
of fiduciary/director/employee/contractual duties; (ii) conspiracy;
(iii) dishonest assistance; (iv) fraud; and (v) breach of contract.
The defendants are Mr. Li Tao, Mr. Yang Fan (former director and
chairman of the Company), Mr. Li Hui (former director of the
Company, First Concept and NUR Clean), Mr. Feng Tao (former
director and deputy general manager of First Concept), Mr. Chan
Chon Hong (former employee of First Concept), Sincere Logistics
Limited (“Sincere Logistics”), China Wish Limited (“China Wish"),
Sino King Trading (HK) Co., Limited (“Sino King”), and Huge Power
Co., Ltd ("Huge Power").

32.COMMITMENTS
Lease commitments
The Group leases certain of its office properties, office equipment and

billboards under operating lease arrangements. Leases are negotiated for

terms ranging from three months to five years, and lease payments are

fixed over the lease terms and do not include contingent rentals.

As at 31 December 2018, the total future minimum lease payments of

the Group under non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:
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2018 2017

—ZE-)N\F —E—tF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

— within one year ——FR 1,164 2,749
—in the second to fifth years inclusive —E_ZFEAF (REEEMRTF) 1,339 2,503
2,503 5,252
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33.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

106

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions with related

3BEBILRS

(@) MUSHBHRREMEHEMREZRS

S FRAEEREBR T ET TR

parties during the year: 5
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Car rental income received from kg —HEgE A ARRNRERERA
an associate 53,576 22,591
Compensation of key management personnel of the Group: by NEEFTZEBEAEMS:
2018 2017
—E-—N\F —E
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Short term employee benefits EHESRA 1,379 4,129

Equity-settled share option expenses

Retirement benefit scheme
contributions

VARE 25 45 5 B AHE B 2
RRTE AR B R

Total compensation paid to
key management personnel

XNTEEEBABZHSEE

-

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 12 to

the financial statements.
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34.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

3. BB 2EMTA

BRI EBMITARRERRZEEAENAT

Financial assets SREE
2018 2017
—E-N\fF —E—LtF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loans and receivables ERkHMERRE
Trade receivables FEUWE 5 558 438
Financial assets included in prepayments, st AJB 5018 - 2 & & H fth fE UK
deposits and other receivables REZEMEE 124,596 138,315
Cash and bank balances Be RiRT4ER 1,119 6,580
126,273 145,333
Financial liabilities tREE
2018 2017
—ZE-N\F —E—+tF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Financial liabilities REBHEAATECERMER
at amortised cost
Trade payables ERE SR 38,590 38,605
Financial liabilities included in FTAHEMENFKIBREER
other payables and accruals ZEEAar 202,580 212,984
Borrowings HihEE 159,035 167,240
Convertible bonds AMRES 232,551 198,920
Non-convertible bonds T mRES 90,500 90,352
723,256 708,101

BRBAERERERAT
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including

foreign currency risk, credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential

adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a)

(b)

108

Market risk

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most
of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of the Group entities. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in
respect of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group has no material exposures to interest rate risk in relation
to interest-bearing assets and liabilities of the Group as the Group's
income and operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk mainly in relation to its trade
and other receivables, cash deposits with banks and maximum
exposure of credit risk is equal to the carrying amounts of these
financial assets. Cash and bank transactions counterparties are
limited to financial institutions with good credit rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had certain
concentration of credit risk as approximately 55% (2017: 78%) and
approximately 99% (2017: 99%) of the Group's trade receivables
were due from the Group’s largest trade debtor and the five largest
trade debtors, respectively. The Group has policies in place to ensure
that sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit history. The Group reviews the recoverable amount of the
trade and other receivables on a regular basis and provision for
doubtful debts is made in accordance with the Group's policies. In
addition, the Management reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade debt regularly to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are recognised for irrecoverable debts. In this regard, the
Management consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

National United Resources Holdings Limited
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35.0iEMESEEERBE (&)
POLICIES (cont’'d)

(b) Credit risk (cont'd) (b) EERBR (&)

The Group considers whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk of financial assets on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period by comparing the risk of a default occurring
as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information. Especially the following information
is used:

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations;

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same borrower;

- significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers.

A significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a debtor is
more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment. A
default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make
contractual payments within 60 days of when they fall due.

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group normally categorises
a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make
contractual payments greater than 360 days past due. Where loans
or receivables have been written off, the Group, if practicable and
economical, continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt
to recover the receivable due.
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (cont’'d)
(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected

110

liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted

payments, is as follows:

On demand or

35. K EEEE R R RBEE @

() RBEZRAR

AEBZBRRTEY

oz
B

ERIPESEE A

PESFF KEMERAEE#FEHE
SRHRENENEEREERBORDESS

SKe

AEBIZE TR BRI R EN RSB

RARzemBEINSMRET

within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
EERA—FR —ERE —ZEE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2018 R=Z-\§+=-A=+-H TET TET TET TR
Trade payables ERESRE 38,590 - - 38,590
Financial liabilities included in ST MR I R e B R
other payables and accruals ZERAE 202,580 - - 202,580
Borrowings B8 168,900 - - 168,900
Finance lease payables HEHERTHE 93,875 50,424 68,475 212,774
Convertible bonds AR E S 84,468 152,600 - 237,068
Non-convertible bonds TR ES 95,000 - - 95,000
683,413 203,024 68,475 954,912
On demand or
within 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years Total
EEXE—FR —EREF ZERF @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-A=+—H TET TER FET FAET
Trade payables R E55E 38,605 - - 38,605
Financial liabilities included in STNE MR I R B R
other payables and accruals ZEMAE 212,984 - - 212,984
Borrowings BE 177,105 - - 177,105
Finance lease payables RERERNTE 64,159 54,753 125,648 244,560
Convertible bonds AHRRES 84,468 152,600 - 237,068
Non-convertible bonds TABRES 95,000 - - 95,000
672,321 207,353 125,648 1,005,322
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35.FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 35.0iEMESEEERBE (&)

POLICIES (cont’d)

(d) Capital management
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain sufficient capital in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue
new shares, or sell assets to reduce debt. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies and processes during the year ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio, which is
calculated as the source of borrowings, convertible bonds and non-
controllable bonds over the amount of total assets as at year ended
date. The Group's strategy is to maintain the gearing ratio at an
appropriate level. The gearing ratio as at 31 December 2018 was Nil
(2017: Nil).

36.EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD -

SUSPENSION OF TRADING OF SHARES

Reference is made to the Company’s announcement dated 1 August
2016, 19 August 2016, 10 October 2017, 24 April 2018, 31 May 2018,
29 June 2018, 31 July 2018, 14 August 2018, 12 October 2018, 30
October 2018, 3 December 2018, 25 January 2019, 31 January 2019, 29
March 2019, 30 April 2019 and 19 June 2019 relating to, among others,
the update of suspension of trading in the Shares on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is still actively carrying out all necessary action to fulfil all
the resumption conditions before 31 July 2019, being the expiry of the
12-months period starting from the effective date of the amendments
to the delisting framework under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

On 19 June 2019, the Company submitted a resumption proposal to the
Stock Exchange. The Company will use its best endeavour to fulfil all
resumption conditions and resume trading of the shares of the Company
on the Stock Exchange.

37.APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
Board of Directors on 9 July, 2019.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

L FERBEBRE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for ANEBEBERMGTRFEZEENEERAEHRE
the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited financial (& ECTIRLBZHHRERLEFTHE (W0
statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out below. BE) )HEHNT -

For the year ended 31 December

BET-A=t-HLEE

2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
RESULTS E3 —E-N\§ —E—+F —E-RE 1% TN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT TET THL THT
(restated)
(B=5)
Revenue Wz 54,697 58,566 51,737 77,818 364,876
(Loss)/profit before tax BRELA (B8), /%7 (15,308) (137,171) (1,456,584) (131,399) (56,841)
Income tax Fig® - - 14,135 (1,968) (12,004)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EB) /G (15,308) (137,171) (1,442,449) (133,367) (68,845)
Attributable to: s
Owners of the Company ARAAERA (14,673) (131,036) (1,438,382) (132,674) (68,647)
Non-controlling interests FERER (635) (6,135) (4,067) (693) (198)
(15,308) (137,171) (1,442,449) (133,367) (68,845)
At 31 December
R+=A=+-A
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE —E2-N\§ —T—tF —ZT-RF —T-hF —T-mE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THIT FTET THT THT
(restated)
(mE5)
Non-current assets ERBEE 168,491 189,355 165,341 777,486 146,358
Current assets MBEE 196,795 172,464 303,223 1,105,287 566,031
Current liabilities MEAE (879,051) (819,876) (526,357) (655,106) (209,527)
Non-current liabilities ERBERE (85,623) (137,298) (396,905) (342,656) (303,239)
Net (liabilities)/assets (Bf8) /EEFE (599,388) (595,355) (454,698) 885,011 199,623
Attributable to: PEAL
Owners of the Company AREHEEA (599,404) (596,356) (461,646) 849,026 198,592
Non-controlling interests FERER 16 1,001 6,948 35,985 1,031
Total equity MRS (599,388) (595,355) (454,698) 885,011 199,623
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